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Analysis of shareholders

Listed below is an analysis of shareholdings extracted from the register of ordinary shareholders at 31 March 2014.

Range of Units

Share Range
Number of 

shareholders
% of

shareholders
Number of 

shares
% of 

Issued Capital

1  – 1000 shares  1 583 64.2  505 775 0.4

1 001 – 10 000 shares  532 21.6 1 828 653 1.5

10 001 – 50 000 shares 209 8.5 4 653 109 3.9

50 001 – 100 000 shares  38 1.5 2 730 037 2.3

100 001 –  500 000 shares 68 2.8  15 329 270 12.8

500 001 – 1000 000 shares 21 0.8 14 431 681 12.0

1 000 001 – shares and over                    16 0.6  80 390 842 67.1

2 467 100.0 119 869 367 100.0

 

Distribution of Shareholders

Number of 
shareholders

% of
shareholders

Number of 
shares

% of 
Issued Capital

Public companies  27  1.1  5 285 790  4.4

Banks  22  0.9  3 191 781  2.7 

Close corporations  63  2.6  4 032 471  3.4 

Individuals  1 984  80.4  43 162 860  36.0 

Nominees and trusts  218  8.8  5 957 334  5.0 

Other corporations  53  2.1  39 079 788  32.6 

Pension funds  48 2.0  1 731 553  1.4 

Private companies  52  2.1  17 427 790  14.5 

 2 467  100.0  119 869 367  100.0 

Shareholders’ diary

Financial year end 31 March

Annual general meeting October

Reports

- Preliminary report May

- Interim report at 30 September November

- Annual financial statements September

SHAREHOLDERS’ SNAPSHOT
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Significant shareholdings

At 31 March 2014, insofar as HCI is aware, the following 
members beneficially held directly or indirectly 5% or more of 
the issued shares:

2014 2013

Southern African Clothing and Textile Workers Union  32.1  39.0 

M.J.A. Golding  7.8  6.8 

 39.9  45.8 

Shareholder spread

Percentage held Number of shareholders

2014 2013 2014 2013

Public 42.2  44.3  2 458  2 189 

Non Public  57.8  55.7  9  10 

Directors  13.2  11.2  4  5 

Associates of directors  1.1  1.0 1  1 

Significant shareholder  32.1  39.0  1  1 

Share trust  1.1  1.6  1  1 

Treasury shares*  10.3  2.9  2  2 

 100.0  100.0  2 467  2 199 

*Includes 1 359 788 (2013: 1 887 570) shares held by   
  the company at year end and cancelled subsequently.

Stock exchange performance 31 March 2014

Total number of shares traded (000’s) 21 323

Total value of shares traded (R’000) 2 786 555

Market price (cents per share)

- Closing 14 950

- High 15 543

- Low 11 001

Market capitalisation (R’000) 17 920 470
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APPROVAL OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECLARATION BY COMPANY SECRETARY

The directors of Hosken Consolidated Investments Limited are 
responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation 
of the financial statements of the company and of the group 
and for other information contained in this annual report. The 
annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 
have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards and include amounts based on prudent 
judgments and estimates by management.

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the 
financial statements. The directors have no reason to believe 
that the group or any company within the group will not be a 
going concern in the foreseeable future based on forecasts 
and available cash resources. These financial statements 
support the viability of the company and the group. The financial 
statements have been audited by the independent auditing 
firm, Grant Thornton (Jhb) Inc, which was given unrestricted 
access to all financial records and related data, including 
minutes of all meetings of shareholders, the board of directors 
and committees of the board.

The directors believe that all representations made to the 
independent auditors during the audit were valid and appropriate.

The annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 
2014, were approved by the board of directors on 27 August 
2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

MJA Golding 	 JA Copelyn 	 TG Govender
Chairman 	 Chief Executive Officer 	 Financial Director

27 August 2014
Cape Town

We certify that Hosken Consolidated Investments Limited has 
lodged with the Registrar of Companies, for the financial year 
ended 31 March 2014, all such returns as are required by a 
public company in terms of the Companies Act of South Africa 
and that such returns are true, correct and up to date.

HCI Managerial Services Proprietary Limited
Company secretary
27 August 2014
Cape Town
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REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We have audited the annual financial statements of Hosken 
Consolidated Investments Limited which comprise the 
consolidated and separate statements of financial position 
as at 31 March 2014, the consolidated and separate 
income statements, statements of other comprehensive 
income, statements of changes in equity and statements 
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
notes, as set out on pages 10 to 117.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
The company’s directors are responsible for the 
preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards, and the requirements of the 
Companies Act of South Africa, and for such internal 
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable 
the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. 
Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on 
the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditors consider internal control 
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by 
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all 
material respects, the consolidated and separate financial 
position of Hosken Consolidated Investments Limited as of 
31 March 2014, and its consolidated and separate financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting and the 
requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.

Other reports required by the Companies Act
As part of our audit of the financial statements for the 
year ended 31 March 2014 we have read the Directors’ 
Report, the Audit Committee’s Report and the Declaration 
by Company Secretary for the purpose of identifying 
whether there are material inconsistencies between 
these reports and the audited financial statements. These 
reports are the responsibility of the respective preparers. 
Based on reading these reports we have not identified 
material inconsistencies between these reports and 
the audited financial statements. However, we have not 
audited these reports and accordingly do not express an 
opinion on these reports.

Grant Thornton (Jhb) Inc.
Registered Auditors
Chartered Accountants (SA)
Registration number 1994/001166/21
Director: B.Frey
Johannesburg
27 August 2014

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HOSKEN CONSOLIDATED INVESTMENTS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

1.	 Nature of business

	 Hosken Consolidated Investments Limited (“HCI”) is an 
investment holding company, incorporated in South 
Africa and listed on the JSE Limited.

2.	 Operations and business

	 The business operations of HCI include the making of 
investments in opportunities as identified by the board 
of directors and to add value to these investments 
over time. As such, HCI has consciously established 
itself and pursued an investment policy in terms 
of which it has endeavoured to maintain significant 
equity and capital participation in entrepreneurially 
run companies with significant growth potential. The 
investments are constantly reviewed and new ones 
sought to complement them.

3.	 Restatement of comparative results
	
	 The were various circumstances in the group requiring 

a restatement of prior year results. The restatements 
relates to our beverages; clothing, textiles and toys; 
media and broadcasting; and natual gas segments. 

	
	 Beverages
	 The accounting for the acquisition of KWV Holdings 

Limited (“KWV”) was made on a provisional basis in 
terms of IFRS 3: Business Combinations for the year 
ended 31 March 2013.  In terms of IAS 8, Accounting 
policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, 
the adjustments to finalise the KWV acquisition have 
been corrected retrospectively. The comparative figures 
have been restated to present the prior year figures as if 
the acquisition accounting was finalised in the prior year. 

	
	 The revised fair values of the assets and liabilities 

resulted in additional depreciation, amortisation and 
defered tax charge for the year end 31 March 2013.

	
	 Clothing, textiles and toys
	 Seardel Investment Corporation Limited have disclosed 

the results of discontinued operations seperately on the 
face of the income statement, and where practical, the 
prior year results have been restated.

	
	 Media and broadcasting
	 As the acquisition of Sunshine Coast Broadcasters 

Proprietary Limited took place close to the 31 March 
2013 year end, the information required to account for 
the acquisition was incomplete. The initial accounting for 
the acquisition was therefore determined provisionally in 
the 31 March 2013 financial report. In accordance with 
IFRS 3: Business Combinations adjustments to initial 
provisional accounting for the acquisition disclosed 

in the 31 March 2013 annual financial statements 
have been recognised as if the final accounting for 
the business combination had been completed at the 
acquisition date. Comparative information for 31 March 
2013 has therefore been adjusted.

	
	 Natural gas
	 During the year ended 31 March 2014 a decision was 

made by the company’s board of directors to distribute 
the group’s interest in Johnnic Holdings USA LLC to its 
shareholders, subject to the receipt of the necessary 
regulatory approvals. The comparative results of these 
operations have been restated to disclose results as 
discontinued operations.

	 Refer to note 48 for the impact of these restatements 
on the results for the year ended 31 March 2013.

4. 	 Business combinations

	 Details of business combinations are set out in note 45 
of the annual financial statements.

5.	 Discontinued operations and disposal group assets 
and liabilities held for sale

	 Details of discontinued operations and disposal group 
assets and liabilities held for sale are set out in notes 36 
and 18 of the annual financial statements respectively.	

6.	 Dividends

	 Ordinary dividend number 48, in the amount of thirty 
cents per share, was paid to shareholders on 17 
December 2013. Ordinary dividend number 49, in the 
amount of one hundred and ten cents per share, was 
paid to shareholders on 17th June 2014.

7.	 Share capital

	 Details of the authorised and issued share capital are 
set out in note 19 of the annual financial statements.

8. 	 Directorate

   	 The directors of the company appear on page 2. 
With effect from 19 March 2014 Ms RD Watson 
and Mr LW Maasdorp were appointed to the board 
of HCI as independent non-executive directors and 
Mr Y Shaik’s status was changed to that of executive 
director. On the same date Mr VE Mphande was 
appointed lead independent non-executive director, 
replacing Mr Y Shaik in this capacity.

9. 	 Company secretary

   	 The secretary of the company for the twelve months 
ended 31 March 2014 is HCI Managerial Services 

for the year ended 31 March 2014
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	 Proprietary Limited. The secretary has an arms-length 
relationship with the board of directors. The name, 
business and postal address of the Company Secretary 
are set out on page 3 of this report.

10. 	Auditors

	 Grant Thornton (Jhb) Inc will continue in office in accordance 
with section 90 of the South African Companies Act, 
with Mr Ben Frey as the designated auditor.

11. Significant shareholders

	 The company’s significant shareholders are Southern 
African Clothing and Textile Workers Union and MJA 
Golding who own 32.1% and 7.8% respectively. No 
shareholder has a controlling interest in the company.

12. Special resolutions

The following special resolutions were passed by the 
company’s shareholders at the Annual General Meeting 
held on 28 October 2013:

• 	Approval of the fees payable to non-executive 
directors for their services as directors or as 
members of the board sub-committees in respect 
of the financial period ended 31 March 2014;

• 	Granting the company and the subsidiaries of the 
company a general authority in terms of the listings 
requirements of the JSE Limited for the acquisition 
by the company, or a subsidiary of the company, of 
ordinary issued shares issued by the company;

	 The following special resolution was passed by the 
company’s shareholders at a general meeting of 
shareholders held on 13 December 2013:

 
	 Specific authority in accordance with the applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, the Listings 
Requirements and its Memorandum of Incorporation, to 
acquire 220 000 HCI Shares owned by Mr Andre van der 
Veen for a consideration of R123.00 per HCI Share, and 
an aggregate consideration of R27 060 000.

13. Special resolutions of subsidiaries

	 The statutory information relating to special resolutions 
passed by subsidiaries is available from the registered 
office of the company.

14. Auditor’s report

	 The consolidated annual financial statements have been 
audited by Grant Thornton (Jhb) Inc. and their unqualified 
audit report on the comprehensive annual financial 
statements is included on page 7 of this report.

15. Shareholding of directors

	 The shareholding of directors of the company and their 
participation in the share incentive scheme and in the 
issued share capital of the company as at 31 March 
2014, are set out in notes 40 and 39 respectively in the 
annual financial statements.

16. Directors’ emoluments

	 Directors’ emoluments incurred by the company and 
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2014 are 
set out in note 41 in the annual financial statements.

17. Subsidiaries

	 Details of the company’s subsidiaries are set out in the 
annexure A to the annual financial statements.

18. Borrowing powers

	 There are no limits placed on borrowings in terms of the 
memorandum of incorporation. Certain companies in the 
group have entered into various loan agreements with 
providers of loan finance. These loan agreements include 
various covenants and undertakings by companies in the 
group which may restrict the group’s borrowing powers. 
Details of these covenants and undertakings are available 
from the registered office of the company.

19. Litigation statement 

	 There are no material legal or arbitration proceedings 
(including proceedings which are pending or threatened 
of which the directors of HCI are aware) which may have 
or have had, during the 12-month period preceding the 
last practicable date, a material effect on the financial 
position of HCI.

20. Material change

	 There has been no material change in the financial or 
trading position of the HCI group since the publication of 
its provisional results for the year ended 31 March 2014.

21. Subsequent events

	 Refer note 47 in the annual financial statements for 
more information. The directors are not aware of any 
further matter or circumstance arising since the end of 
the financial period, not otherwise dealt with within the 
financial statements that would affect the operations 
or results of the company or the group significantly.

22. Preparer

	 These annual financial statements were prepared 
under the supervision of the financial director, Mr TG 
Govender, B.Compt (Hons).
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Group Company

2014 2013*# 2012* 2014 2013

Notes  R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

Assets

Non-current assets  16 851 858  15 811 394  13 883 204  19 149 803  3 871 835 

Property, p lant and equipment 1  3 735 578  3 959 409  2 932 761  -    -   

Investment propert ies 2  1 695 532  907 503  557 886  -    -   

Goodwi l l 3  279 011  256 470  186 212  -    -   

Intangible assets 4  695 276  881 909  609 254  -    -   

Intangible assets mining 5  111 611  102 207  92 094  -    -   

Investments in associates 6  9 620 840  9 083 194  8 846 255  3 000  3 000 

Investments in jo int arrangements 7  353 356  378 514  388 924  -    -   

Other f inancia l  assets 8  9 163  56 789  105 869  -    -   

Subsidiary companies 9  -    -    -    19 068 535  3 744 788 

Deferred taxat ion 10  127 941  84 189  67 928  -    -   

Operat ing lease equal isat ion asset 11  27 185  8 276  8 258  -    -   

F inance lease receivables 12  50 526  48 674  43 402  -    -   

Non-current receivables 13  145 839  44 260  44 361  78 268  124 047 

Current assets  4 935 432  4 878 741  3 257 200  2 689  5 747 

Inventories 14  1 644 269  1 721 461  701 024  -    -   

Programme rights 15  292 726  255 975  198 340  -    -   

Other f inancia l  assets 8  37 742  163 267  76 111  -    -   

Trade and other receivables 16  1 761 440  1 729 017  1 544 812  352  -   

Taxat ion  10 575  22 520  15 463  -    -   

Cash and cash equivalents 38.5  1 188 680  986 501  721 450  2 337  5 747 

Disposal group assets held for sale 18  1 006 446  2 543  15 288  -    -   

Total assets  22 793 736  20 692 678  17 155 692  19 152 492  3 877 582 

* Restated. Refer to note 48.
#  Balances have been reclassi f ied.

  Refer to note 49.

AS AT 31 MARCH 2014
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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Group Company

2014 2013*# 2012* 2014 2013

Notes  R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

Equity and liabilities

Capital and reserves  14 930 161  15 432 755  12 836 030  18 645 717  3 651 880 

Ordinary share capital 19  26 544  30 807  31 550  29 627  31 764 

Share premium 19  -  666 298  704 477  99 840  864 238 

Other reserves 20  687 910  442 175  157 463  -    -   

Accumulated prof its  11 380 024  11 761 403  10 884 213  18 516 250  2 755 878 

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent  12 094 478  12 900 683  11 777 703  18 645 717  3 651 880 

Non-control l ing interest  2 835 683  2 532 072  1 058 327  -    -   

Non-current liabilities  3 407 985  1 795 913  1 592 601  -    -   

Operat ing lease equal isat ion l iabi l i ty 11  3 596  118  1 808  -    -   

Borrowings 22  2 917 689  1 304 221  1 275 373  -    -   

Post ret irement medical  benef it  l iabi l i t ies 23  154 942  150 282  133 544  -    -   

Long term provis ions 24  54 319  100 684  83 978  -    -   

Deferred taxat ion 10  277 439  240 608  97 898  -    -   

Current liabilities  4 336 792  3 462 320  2 721 263  506 775  225 702 

Trade and other payables 25  1 764 002  1 605 628  1 112 977  1 969  2 005 

Financia l  l iabi l i t ies 21  27 494  15 164  14 383  -    -   

Amounts owing to subsidiary companies 9  -    -    -    369 581  74 961 

Current port ion of borrowings 22  1 687 231  1 019 915  886 362  -    -   

Taxat ion  9 993  6 508  94 494  20  8 

Provis ions 24  141 164  140 366  144 738  -    -   

Bank overdrafts 26  706 908  674 739  468 309  135 205  148 728 

Disposal group l iabi l i t ies held for sale 18  118 798  1 690  5 798  -    -   

Total equity and liabilities  22 793 736  20 692 678  17 155 692  19 152 492  3 877 582 

* Restated
#  Balances have been reclassi f ied.

  Refer to note 49.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
INCOME STATEMENTS

 

Group Company

2014 2013* 2014 2013

Notes  R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

Revenue 29  8 382 905  6 677 101 -  -   

Net gaming win  818 421  689 953 -  -   

 9 201 326  7 367 054  -    -   

Depreciat ion and amort isat ion  (407 177)  (328 306) -  -   

Other operat ing expenses and income  (7 588 450)  (5 902 013)  (9 671)  (12 984)

Investment income 30  48 806  53 159  1 673 717  521 353 

Share of prof its of associates and jo int ventures  748 228  691 799  -    -   

Gain on bargain purchase  -    476 901  -    -   

Investment surplus (def ic it) 31  -    35 416  14 472 670  (266 502)

Fair value adjustments of investment propert ies  23 284  427  -    -   

Other impairment reversals  509  21 885  23 495  22 196 

Asset impairments  (12 489)  (55 521)  -    -   

Fair value adjustments of f inancia l  instruments  21 010  10 834  -    -   

Impairment of goodwi l l  and investments 32  (329)  (1 084)  (311)  (478)

Finance costs 33  (248 621)  (150 799)  (5 642)  (1 560)

Profit before taxation 34  1 786 097  2 219 752  16 154 258  262 025 

Taxat ion 35  (306 259)  (294 526)  (1 435)  20 148 

Profit for the year from continuing operations  1 479 838  1 925 226  16 152 823  282 173 

Discont inued operat ions 36  (214 141)  (109 978)  -    -   

Profit for the year    1 265 697  1 815 248  16 152 823  282 173 

Attr ibutable to:

Equity holders of the parent  1 060 455  1 381 466 

Non-control l ing interest  205 242  433 782 

 1 265 697  1 815 248 

Earnings per share (cents) 37  923.84  1 095.13 

  Cont inuing operat ions  1 084.36  1 173.40 

  Discont inued operat ions  (160.52)  (78.27)

Di luted earnings per share (cents) 37  908.62  1 072.16 

  Cont inuing operat ions  1 066.50  1 148.79 

  Discont inued operat ions  (157.88)  (76.63)

* Restated
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
STATEMENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

 

Group Company

2014 2013* 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

Prof it  for the year  1 265 697  1 815 248  16 152 823  282 173 

Other comprehensive income/( loss) net of tax:

Items that may be reclassi f ied subsequently to 

prof it  or loss

Foreign currency translat ion di f ferences  200 412  288 244  -    -   

Share of other comprehensive profit (loss) of associate  38 201  (9 973)  -    -   

Asset revaluat ion reserve  -    (6 612)  -    -   

Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified  -    1 230  -    -   

Items that may not be reclassif ied subsequently 

to profit or loss

Actuarial gains on post-employment benefit liability  8 323  -    -    -   

Income tax relating to items not reclassified  (2 550)  -    -    -   

Total  comprehensive income for the year  1 510 083  2 088 137  16 152 823  282 173 

Attr ibutable to:

Equity holders of the parent  1 300 005  1 645 249 

Non-control l ing interest  210 078  442 888 

 1 510 083  2 088 137 

* Restated
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

 

Share Share Other Accumulated Non-controlling

capital premium reserves prof its interest Total

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

GROUP

Balance at 31 March 2012  31 550  704 477  157 463  10 884 213  1 058 327  12 836 030 

Share capital  and premium

Treasury shares released  486  75 924  -    -    -    76 410 

Shares repurchased  (221)  (114 103)  -    -    -    (114 324)

Current operat ions

Total  comprehensive income *  -    -    263 783  1 381 466  442 888  2 088 137 

Equity settled share-based payments  -    -    17 233  -    -    17 233 

Non-controlling interest on acquisition 

of subsidiaries *

 -    -    -    -    794 573  794 573 

Effects of changes in holding  (1 008)  -    3 696  (382 692)  470 206  90 202 

Capital  reduct ions and div idends  -    -    -    (121 584)  (233 922)  (355 506)

Balance at 31 March 2013  30 807  666 298  442 175  11 761 403  2 532 072  15 432 755 

Share capital  and premium

Treasury shares released  181  45 598  -    -    -    45 779 

Shares repurchased  (938)  (355 105)  -    (101 400)  -    (457 443)

Current operat ions

Total  comprehensive income  -    -    232 643  1 067 362  210 078  1 510 083 

Equity settled share-based payments  -    -    16 170  -    -    16 170 

Non-controlling interest on acquisition 

of subsidiaries

 -    -    -    -    3 359  3 359 

Effects of changes in holding  (3 506)  (1 567 216)  (3 078)  (1 196)  227 556  (1 347 440)

Capital  reduct ions and div idends  -    -    -    (135 720)  (137 382)  (273 102)

Transfer - 1 210 425 - (1 210 425) - -

Balance at 31 March 2014  26 544  - 687 910  11 380 024   2 835 683  14 930 161 

Notes 19 20

* Restated

14



 

Share Share Accumulated

capital premium prof its Total

Notes R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

COMPANY

Balances at 31 March 2012  32 994  978 341  2 966 201  3 977 536 

Share capital  and premium

Share repurchases 19  (1 230)  (114 103)  -    (115 333)

Current operat ions

Total  comprehensive income  -    -    282 173  282 173 

Div idends  -    -    (492 496)  (492 496)

Balances at 31 March 2013  31 764  864 238  2 755 878  3 651 880 

Share capital  and premium

Share repurchases 19  (2 137)  (764 398)  -    (766 535)

Current operat ions

Total  comprehensive income  -    -    16 152 823  16 152 823 

Div idends  -    -    (392 451)  (392 451)

Balances at 31 March 2014  29 627  99 840  18 516 250  18 645 717 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

 

Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

Notes  R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

Cash flows from operating activities  1 045 692   891 888  96 047   298 768 

Cash generated/(ut i l ised) by operat ions 38.1  1 637 365  1 524 374  (14 615)  (12 984)

Investment income   46 862   56 830  258 670   521 353 

Changes in working capital 38.2   187 130   199 282  (388)  (83 536)

Cash generated by operat ing act iv it ies  1 871 357  1 780 486  243 667   424 833 

Finance costs  (244 796)  (175 959)  (5 642)  (1 560)

Taxat ion paid 38.3  (307 767)  (357 133)  (1 423)  (1 204)

Div idends paid  (273 102)  (355 506)  (140 555)  (123 301)

Cash flows from investing activities  (1 240 277)  (992 712)  139 769   37 342 

Business combinat ions 38.4  (17 922)  (81 784)  -    -   

Investment in:

-Subsidiary companies  (44 557)  (36 054)  139 175  (6 914)

-Associated companies and jo int ventures  (32 842)  (109 735)  -    -   

-Other  (4 094)  (43 698)  -    -   

Div idends received   387 741   369 910    594  -   

Short term loans advanced   20 651   2 550  -    -   

Decrease in long term receivables  (105 720)  (60 384)  -    -   

Proceeds on disposal of  investments   207 083   83 964  -     44 256 

Intangible assets 

- Addit ions  (184 309)  (136 373)  -    -   

-  Disposals   2 045  -    -    -   

Investment propert ies

- Addit ions  (718 294)  (202 719)  -    -   

-  Disposals   1 850  -    -    -   

Property, p lant and equipment:

-Addit ions  (798 623)  (818 912)  -    -   

-Disposals   46 714   40 523  -    -   

Cash flows from financing activities   430 598   92 436  (225 703)  (484 525)

Ordinary shares issued and treasury shares sold   45 779   76 410  -    -   

Ordinary shares repurchased  (457 443)  (114 324)  (225 703)  (484 525)

Change in non-control l ing interest  (56 424)   45 815  -    -   

Long term funding raised   898 686   84 535  -    -   

Cash and cash equivalents 

Movements   236 013  (8 388)   10 113  (148 415)

At beginning of year   311 762   253 141  (142 981)   5 434 

Foreign exchange di f ference   26 611   67 009  -    -   

At end of year 38.5   574 386   311 762  (132 868)  (142 981)
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.	 Accounting policies

This summary of the principal accounting policies of 
the Hosken Consolidated Investments Limited group is 
presented to assist with the evaluation of the annual 
financial statements.

a)	 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS), the SAICA Financial 
Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices 
Committee, the South African Companies Act, No 71 
of 2008, and the Listings requirements of the JSE 
Limited. The consolidated financial statements have 
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as 
modified by the revaluation to fair value of investment 
properties and certain financial instruments as described 
in the accounting policies below. The accounting policies 
are consistent with that applied in the previous year. 

b)	 Segmental reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent 
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who 
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing 
performance of the operating segments, has been 
identified as the board.

c)	 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the 
financial information of the subsidiaries, associated 
entities and joint ventures.

i)  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) 
over which the group has control. The group controls 
an entity when the group is exposed to, or has rights 
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity 
and has the ability to affect those returns through its 
power over the entity. Where the group’s interest in 
subsidiaries is less than 100%, the share attributable 
to outside shareholders is reflected in non-controlling 
interests. Subsidiaries are included in the financial 
statements from the date control commences until the 
date control ceases. 

The group applies the acquisition method of accounting 
to account for business combinations. The consideration 
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair 
value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred 
and the equity interests issued by the group. The 
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any 

asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration 
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as 
incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and 
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination 
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition 
date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the group 
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree 
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s 
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets. 

Control is presumed to exist when the group owns, 
directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, more than half 
of the voting power of an entity unless, in exceptional 
circumstances, it can be clearly demonstrated that 
such ownership does not constitute control. Control 
also exists where the group has the ability to direct or 
dominate decision-making in an entity, regardless of 
whether this power is actually exercised. 

The company records its investment in subsidiaries 
at cost less any impairment charges. These interests 
include any intergroup loans receivable, which represent 
by nature a further investment in the subsidiary. 

Intra-group balances, and any unrealised gains and 
losses or income and expenses arising from intra-
group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the 
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are 
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of 
an impairment of the asset transferred.

ii) Transactions and non-controlling interests

The group treats transactions with non-controlling 
interests as transactions with equity owners of the 
group. For purchases from non-controlling interests, 
the difference between any consideration paid and the 
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net 
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains 
or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests and 
direct costs incurred in respect of transactions with 
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity. 

iii) Associates and joint arrangements

The group recognises its share of associates’ and joint 
arrangements ’ results in profit or loss, after accounting 
for interest, tax and non-controlling interests. 

Investments in associates and joint arrangements are 
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and 
are initially recognised at cost. 

The carrying amount of the group’s investment in 
associates and joint arrangements includes goodwill 
(net of any accumulated impairment loss) recognised on 
acquisition.
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The group’s share of its associates’ and joint ventures’ 
post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in 
profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition reserve 
movements is recognised in other comprehensive 
income. The cumulative post-acquisition movements 
are recognised against the carrying amount of the 
investment. When the group’s share of losses in an 
associate or joint venture equals or exceeds its interest 
in the associate or joint venture, including any other 
unsecured receivables, the group does not recognise 
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or 
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint 
venture.

Some of the group’s associates and joint ventures 
have accounting reference dates other than 31 
March. These are equity accounted using management 
prepared information on a basis coterminous with the 
group’s reporting date.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group 
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to 
the extent of the group’s interest in the associates and 
joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated 
unless the transaction provides evidence of an 
impairment of the asset transferred. Associates’ and 
joint ventures’ accounting policies have been changed 
where necessary to ensure consistency with the 
policies adopted by the group.

d)    Foreign exchange

(i) Functional and presentation currency 

Items included in the financial statements of each of 
the group’s entities are measured using the currency of 
the primary economic environment in which the entity 
operates (the functional currency). The consolidated 
financial statements are presented in South African 
Rands which is the group’s functional and presentation 
currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

The financial statements for each group company 
have been prepared on the basis that transactions 
in foreign currencies are recorded in their functional 
currency at the rate of exchange ruling at the date 
of the transaction. Monetary items denominated 
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of 
exchange ruling at the statement of financial position 
date with the resultant translation differences being 
recognised in profit or loss. Translation differences 
on non-monetary assets such as equity investments 
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other 
comprehensive income.

(iii) Foreign subsidiaries and associates – translation 

Once-off items in the income statement and statement 
of cash flows of foreign subsidiaries and associates 
expressed in currencies other than the South African 
Rand are translated to South African Rand at the rates 
of exchange prevailing on the day of the transaction. All 
other items are translated at weighted average rates 
of exchange for the relevant reporting period. Assets 
and liabilities of these undertakings are translated 
at closing rates of exchange at each reporting date. 
All translation exchange differences arising on the 
retranslation of opening net assets together with 
differences between income statements translated at 
average and closing rates are recognised as a separate 
component of equity. For these purposes net assets 
include loans between group companies that form part 
of the net investment, for which settlement is neither 
planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future and 
is either denominated in the functional currency of the 
parent or the foreign entity. When a foreign operation 
is disposed of, any related exchange differences in 
equity are recycled through profit or loss as part of the 
gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the 
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and 
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the rate 
of exchange at reporting date.

e)    Business combinations

(i) Subsidiaries

The group uses the acquisition method of accounting to 
account for business combinations. The consideration 
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the 
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities 
incurred and the equity interests issued by the group. 
The consideration transferred includes the fair value 
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent 
consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs 
are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired 
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a 
business combination are measured initially at their 
fair values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, the group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value 
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share 
of the acquiree’s net assets.  

(ii) Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess 
of the cost of the acquisition over the group’s interest 
in the fair value of the identifiable assets (including 
intangibles), liabilities and contingent liabilities of the 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
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acquired entity at the date of acquisition. Where the 
fair value of the group’s share of identifiable net assets 
acquired exceeds the fair value of the consideration, the 
difference is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Goodwill is stated at cost less impairment losses and 
is reviewed for impairment on an annual basis. Any 
impairment identified is recognised immediately in profit 
or loss and is not reversed.

Where a business combination occurs in several 
stages goodwill will be recognised on the transaction 
that results in the group obtaining control of the 
subsidiary. Goodwill, or gain on bargain purchase, will 
be measured as the difference between the fair value of 
the identifiable net assets acquired and the sum of the 
consideration paid, the non-controlling interest and the 
fair value of any previous interest held.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the 
purpose of impairment testing. Each of those cash 
generating units is in accordance with the basis on 
which the businesses are managed and according to 
the differing risk and reward profiles.

f)     Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost net of 
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable 
to the acquisition of the assets. Subsequent costs are 
included in the asset’s carrying value or recognised 
as a separate asset as appropriate, only when it is 
probable that future economic benefits associated with 
the specific asset will flow to the group and the cost 
can be measured reliably. Repairs and maintenance 
costs are charged to profit or loss during the financial 
period in which they are incurred.

Assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation 
methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at 
each reporting date.

(i) Depreciation

No depreciation is provided on freehold land or assets 
in the course of construction. In respect of all other 
property, plant and equipment, depreciation is provided 
on a straight-line basis at rates calculated to write off 
the cost or valuation, less the estimated residual value 
of each asset over its expected useful life as follows:

Broadcast and studio equipment	 5 years
Buses	 5 years
Freehold buildings and infrastructure	 10 - 50 years
Leasehold improvements	 Lesser of estimated 

useful life or period of lease
Leasehold land and buildings	 Period of the lease
Other equipment and vehicles	 3 - 10 years
Plant and machinery	 5 - 12½ years

(ii) Profit or loss on disposal

The profit or loss on the disposal of an asset is the 
difference between the disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset.

(iii) Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Direct financing costs incurred, before tax, on major 
capital projects during the period of development or 
construction that necessarily take a substantial period 
of time to be developed for their intended use are 
capitalised up to the time of completion of the project.

g) 	 Investment properties

Investment properties are held for capital appreciation 
and are not occupied by the group. Investment properties 
are recognised at fair value representing estimated 
market value. Changes in fair value are recognised in 
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

h) 	 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost is usually 
determined as the amount paid by the group.

Amortisation is recognised together with depreciation in 
profit or loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite lives are not amortised 
but are subject to annual reviews for impairment.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a 
straight-line basis over their estimated useful economic 
lives, and only tested for impairment where there is a 
triggering event. The directors’ assessment of the useful 
life of intangible assets is based on the nature of the 
asset acquired, the durability of the products to which 
the asset attaches and the expected future impact of 
competition on the business.

(i) Computer software

Where computer software is not an integral part of 
a related item of property, plant and equipment, the 
software is capitalised as an intangible asset.
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Acquired computer software licences are capitalised 
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and 
bring them to use. Direct costs associated with 
the production of identifiable and unique internally 
generated software products controlled by the group 
that will probably generate future economic benefits are 
capitalised. Direct costs include software development 
employment costs (including those of contractors used) 
and an appropriate portion of overheads. Capitalised 
computer software, licence and development costs 
are amortised over their useful economic lives that are 
reassessed on an annual basis.

Internally generated costs associated with maintaining 
computer software programs are expensed as 
incurred.

(ii) Bid costs and casino licences

Costs incurred during the bidding process, including 
finance costs, for a casino licence are capitalised 
by the individual casino on the successful award of 
a casino licence, and amortised over the exclusivity 
period applicable to each licence, which ranges from 
10 to 12,5 years from date of commencement of 
those operations.

Bid costs are amortised on a straight-line basis. The costs 
associated with unsuccessful casino licence applications, 
including finance costs, are written off as and when 
related bids are determined to be unsuccessful. 

(iii) Trademarks

Trademarks are recognised initially at cost. Trademarks 
have definite useful lives and are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated 
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of 
trademarks over their estimated useful lives.

(iv) Customer contracts

These contracts represent a guaranteed source of 
income over the life of the contract for the purchase 
of processed gas. The contract is amortised over a 15 
year period on a straight-line method.

(v) Distribution rights

Distribution rights represent multi-territory and 
multiplatform programming rights that the group is 
able to on-sell to other broadcasters. Distribution rights 
are initially recognised at cost. Distribution rights are 
amortised over the products’ economic life-cycle which 
is determined on a pro-rate basis of the individual titles’ 
total cost based on the territory and broadcast platform 
for which the distribution rights have been on sold.

Distribution rights are amortised on a straight-line basis. 

Distribution rights are tested for impairment annually 
until they are brought into use.

(vi) Capitalised evaluation and exploration expenditure, 
and capitalised development expenditure 

Capitalised evaluation and exploration expenditure, and 
capitalised development expenditure with finite lives are 
amortised over their estimated useful economic life as 
follows:

Mineral assets 			   2 - 25 years
Exploration and evaluation assets 	 Units of 
	 production method 
	 over estimated
 	 useful life

Direct attributable expenses relating to mining and 
other major capital projects, site preparations and 
exploration and development are capitalised until 
the asset is brought to a working condition for its 
intended use. These costs include dismantling and 
site restoration costs to the extent that these are 
recognised as a provision.

Costs capitalised to evaluation and exploration 
expenditure are transferred to capitalised development 
costs once the technical feasibility and commercial 
viability of developing the mine has been established 
and the decision to develop the mine has been taken 
by the directors.

Capitalised evaluation and exploration expenditure is 
amortised and is tested for impairment only if indicators 
of impairment exist in accordance with IFRS 6. 
Capitalised development expenditure will be amortised 
over the useful life on a unit of production basis once the 
mine is commissioned, and is tested for impairment at 
each statement of financial position date in accordance 
with IAS 38, until the mine is commissioned. Once the 
mine is commissioned impairment testing is only done 
if there is an indicator of impairment.

(vii) Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Financing costs directly associated with the 
construction or acquisition of qualifying assets are 
capitalised at interest rates relating to loans specifically 
raised for that purpose, or at the average borrowing 
rate where the general pool of group borrowings was 
utilised. Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when 
the asset is substantially complete.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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(viii) Gas rights

Gas rights with finite lives are amortised over their 
estimated useful economic life as follows:
Units of production method of depletion over gas rights’ term

(ix) Programming under development

Programming under development represents costs 
relating to programming that is still in the process of 
development and cannot yet be brought into use. Once 
brought into use, these assets will be amortised and 
transferred to programme rights.

i)     Financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially 
recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable 
transaction costs (transaction costs are not included on 
initial recognition for financial instruments carried at fair 
value through profit or loss).

Financial assets consist of cash, equity instruments, a 
contractual right to receive cash or another financial 
asset, or a contractual right to exchange financial 
instruments with another entity on potentially favourable 
terms. Financial assets are derecognised when the right 
to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or 
have been transferred and the group has transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are recognised when there is a 
contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial 
asset, or to exchange financial instruments with another 
entity on potentially unfavourable terms. Financial liabilities 
are derecognised when they are extinguished; that is 
discharged, cancelled or expired. 

If a legally enforceable right exists to set off recognised 
amounts of financial assets and liabilities and there is an 
intention to settle net, the relevant financial assets and 
liabilities are offset.

Interest costs are recognised using the effective 
interest method. Premiums or discounts arising from 
the difference between the net proceeds of financial 
instruments purchased or issued and the amounts 
receivable or repayable at maturity are included in the 
effective interest calculation and taken to net interest 
payable over the life of the instrument.

(i) Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 
are non-derivative financial assets held for trading and/
or designated by the entity upon initial recognition as fair 
value through profit or loss.

A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired 
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if 
so designated by management.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of 
the “financial assets at fair value though profit or loss” 
category are presented in the income statement within 
other losses/gains – net, in the period in which they 
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss as 
part of other income when the group’s right to receive 
payments is established.

(ii) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial 
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed 
maturities that the group’s management has the positive 
intention and ability to hold to maturity.

(iii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets 
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted 
in an active market. They are included in current assets 
(trade and other receivables), except for maturities of 
greater than 12 months after the statement of financial 
position date which are classified as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision 
for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade 
receivables is established when there is objective evidence 
that the group will not be able to collect all amounts due 
according to the terms of the receivables.

Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability 
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial 
reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments 
are considered indicators that the trade receivable is 
impaired. The amount of the impairment is the difference 
between the asset’s carrying value and the present value 
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the 
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of 
the asset is reduced through the use of a impairment 
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in 
profit or loss. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, 
it is written off against the impairment account for trade 
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously 
written off are recognised in profit or loss as bad debts 
recovered.

(iv) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

Non-derivative financial liabilities are measured initially 
and subsequently at fair value by discounting the future 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

cash payments using the market rate applicable at 
statement of financial position date. The gain or loss on 
re-measurement to fair value is recognised immediately in 
profit or loss.

(v) Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of 
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
stated at amortised cost using the effective yield method; 
any difference between proceeds and the redemption 
value is recognised in the profit or loss over the period 
of the borrowings.

(vi) Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are non-derivative financial 
assets that are either designated in this category or 
not classified as any of the above. Investments in this 
category are included in non-current assets unless 
management intends to dispose of the investment within 
12 months of the statement of financial position date.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities 
denominated in a foreign currency and classified as 
available-for-sale are analysed between translation 
differences resulting from changes in amortised cost 
of the security and other changes in the carrying 
amount of the security. The translation differences on 
monetary securities are recognised in profit and loss; 
translation differences on non-monetary securities are 
recognised in other comprehensive income. Changes 
in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary 
securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised 
in other comprehensive income. When securities 
classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the 
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in other 
comprehensive income are included in profit or loss as 
gains and losses from investment securities. Interest on 
available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective 
interest rate method is recognised in profit or loss as 
part of other income. Dividends on available-for-sale 
equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss as 
part of other income when the group’s right to receive 
payments is established.

(vii) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost and 
include cash in hand, bank deposits, other short-term 
highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are included within cash and cash 
equivalents on the face of the statement of cash flows 
as they form an integral part of the group’s cash 
management.

Fair Value
The fair values of quoted investments are based on 
current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is not 
active, and for unlisted securities, the group establishes 
fair value by using valuation techniques. These include 
the use of recent arm’s length transactions, reference 
to other instruments that are substantially the same, 
discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models, 
making maximum use of market inputs and relying as 
little as possible on entity specific inputs. 

Impairment
The group assesses at each statement of financial 
position date whether there is objective evidence that a 
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. 
In the case of equity securities classified as available-
for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair 
value of the security below its cost is considered as an 
indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such 
evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the 
cumulative loss, measured as the difference between 
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less 
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously 
recognised in profit or loss, is removed from equity 
and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses 
recognised in profit or loss on equity instruments are 
not reversed through profit or loss. Impairment testing 
of trade receivables is described in note (iii) above. 

The Company records its investment in subsidiaries at 
cost less any impairment charges.

j)      Derivative financial assets and financial liabilities

Derivative financial assets and financial liabilities are 
financial instruments whose value changes in response 
to an underlying variable, require little or no initial 
investment and are settled in the future.

Derivative financial assets and liabilities are analysed 
between current and non-current assets and liabilities 
on the face of the statement of financial position, 
depending on when they are expected to mature. For 
derivatives that are not designated to have a hedging 
relationship, all fair value movements thereon are 
recognised immediately in profit or loss. See note (k) for 
the group’s accounting policy on hedge accounting.

k)     Hedge accounting

The derivative instruments used by the group, which are 
used solely for hedging purposes (i.e. to offset foreign 
exchange and interest rate risks), comprise interest 
rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts. 
Such derivative instruments are used to alter the risk 
profile of an existing underlying exposure of the group in 
line with the group’s risk management policies.
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Derivatives are initially recorded at fair value on the date 
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently 
remeasured at their fair value. The method of recognising 
the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the 
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if 
so, the nature of the hedging relationship. 

In order to qualify for hedge accounting, the group is 
required to document the relationship between the 
hedged item and the hedging instrument. The group 
is also required to document and demonstrate that the 
relationship between the hedged item and the hedging 
instrument will be highly effective. This effectiveness test is 
re-performed at each period end to ensure that the hedge 
has remained and will continue to remain highly effective.

The group designates certain derivatives as either: 
hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities 
or a firm commitment (fair value hedge); hedges of 
highly probable forecast transactions or commitment 
(cash flow hedge); or hedges of net investments in 
foreign operations.

The full fair value of a hedging derivative is classified 
as a noncurrent asset or liability when the remaining 
maturity of the hedged item is more than 12 months; 
it is classified as a current asset or liability when the 
remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than 12 
months. Trading derivatives are classified as a current 
asset or liability.

(i) Fair value hedges

Fair value hedges comprise derivative financial 
instruments designated in a hedging relationship to 
manage the group’s interest rate risk to which the fair 
value of certain assets and liabilities are exposed.

Changes in the fair value of the derivative offset the 
relevant changes in the fair value of the underlying 
hedged item attributable to the hedged risk in profit or 
loss in the period incurred.

Gains or losses on fair value hedges that are regarded as 
highly effective are recognised in profit or loss together 
with the gain or loss on the hedged item attributable to 
the hedged risk.

 (ii) Cash flow hedges

Cash flow hedges comprise derivative financial 
instruments designated in a hedging relationship to 
manage currency or interest rate risk to which the cash 
flows of certain liabilities are exposed.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of the 
derivative that is designated and qualifies for hedge 

accounting is recognised in other comprehensive income. 
The ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit 
or loss.  Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled to 
profit or loss in the period in which the hedged item 
affects profit or loss.

However, where a forecasted transaction results in a 
non-financial asset or liability, the accumulated fair value 
movements previously deferred in other comprehensive 
income are included in the initial cost of the asset or 
liability.

(iii) Hedges of net investments in foreign operations 

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations comprise 
either foreign currency borrowings or derivatives 
(typically forward exchange contracts) designated in a 
hedging relationship.

Gains or losses on hedging instruments that are 
regarded as highly effective are recognised in other 
comprehensive income. These largely offset foreign 
currency gains or losses arising on the translation of net 
investments that are recorded in equity, in the foreign 
currency translation reserve. The ineffective portion of 
gains or losses on hedging instruments is recognised 
immediately in profit or loss. Amounts accumulated in 
equity are only recycled to profit or loss upon disposal of 
the net investment.

Where a derivative ceases to meet the criteria of being 
a hedging instrument or the underlying exposure which 
it is hedging is sold, matures or is extinguished, hedge 
accounting is discontinued. A similar treatment is 
applied where the hedge is of a future transaction and 
that transaction is no longer likely to occur.

Certain derivative instruments, whilst providing effective 
economic hedges under the group’s policies, are not 
designated as hedges. Changes in the fair value of any 
derivative instruments that do not qualify or have not 
been designated as hedges are recognised immediately 
in profit or loss.

The group does not hold or issue derivative financial 
instruments for speculative purposes.

l)     Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net 
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted 
average or first in-first-out method. The cost of finished 
goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, 
direct labour, other direct costs and related production 
overheads (based on normal operating capacity) but 
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

business, less selling expenses. Allowance is made for 
slow moving goods and obsolete materials are written 
off.

m)    Programme rights

Programme rights are stated at the contracted 
costs incurred in obtaining the rights to transmit the 
programmes, less the cost of programmes transmitted 
or written off during the year.

n)    Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Mandatory 
redeemable preference shares are classified as liabilities 
(see Note p). Incremental costs directly attributable to 
the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as 
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Incremental 
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares 
or options are included in the share premium account. 
Where subsidiaries hold shares in the holding company’s 
equity share capital, the consideration paid to acquire 
these shares is deducted from total shareholders’ equity 
as treasury shares. Where such shares are subsequently 
sold or reissued, any consideration received is included in 
shareholders’ equity. Shares issued to or held by share 
incentive plans within the group are treated as treasury 
shares until such time when participants pay for and take 
delivery of such shares.

o)     Trade payables

Trade payables are initially recognised at fair value 
and subsequently measured at amortised cost. Trade 
payables are analysed between current and non-current 
liabilities on the face of the statement of financial 
position, depending on when the obligation to settle will 
be realised.

p)    Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net 
of transaction costs and are subsequently stated at 
amortised cost and include accrued interest and prepaid 
interest. Borrowings are classified as current liabilities 
unless the group has an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months from 
the reporting date.

Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable 
on a specific date, are classified as liabilities. The non-
discretionary dividends on these preference shares are 
recognised in profit or loss as interest expense.

q)      Impairment

This policy covers all assets except inventories (see 
note l), financial assets (see note i), non-current assets 

classified as held for sale (see note i). Impairment reviews 
are performed by comparing the carrying value of the 
asset to its recoverable amount, being the higher of the 
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. The fair value 
less costs to sell is considered to be the amount that 
could be obtained on disposal of the asset. The value 
in use of the asset is determined by discounting, at a 
market based pre-tax discount rate, the expected future 
cash flows resulting from its continued use, including 
those arising from its final disposal. When the carrying 
values of non-current assets are written down by any 
impairment amount, the loss is recognised in profit or 
loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are 
independent from the cash flows of other assets the 
group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash 
generating unit (‘‘CGU’’) to which the asset belongs.

For the purpose of conducting impairment reviews, 
CGU’s are considered to be the lowest level of groups 
of assets and liabilities that have separately identifiable 
cash flows. They also include those assets and liabilities 
directly involved in producing the income and a suitable 
proportion of those used to produce more than one 
income stream.

When an impairment is recognised, the impairment loss 
is held firstly against any specifically impaired assets of 
the CGU, then recognised against goodwill balances. Any 
remaining loss is set against the remaining intangible 
and tangible assets on a pro rata basis.

Should circumstances or events change and give rise to 
a reversal of a previous impairment loss, the reversal 
is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it 
occurs and the carrying value of the asset is increased. 
The increase in the carrying value of the asset is 
restricted to the amount that it would have been had the 
original impairment not occurred. Impairment losses in 
respect of goodwill are irreversible.

Intangible non-current assets with an indefinite life and 
goodwill are tested annually for impairment. Assets 
subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment if 
circumstances or events change to indicate that the 
carrying value may not be fully recoverable.

r)     Non-current assets held for sale

Items classified as non-current assets held for sale are 
measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value 
less costs to sell.

Such assets are classified as held for sale if their 
carrying amount will be recovered through a sale 
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transaction rather than through continued use. This 
condition is regarded as met only when a sale is highly 
probable, the asset or disposal group is available for 
immediate sale in its present condition and management 
is committed to the sale which is expected to qualify for 
recognition as a completed sale within one year from 
date of classification.

s)     Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present 
obligation, whether legal or constructive, as a result of 
a past event for which it is probable that a transfer of 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount 
of the obligation. Such provisions are calculated on a 
discounted basis where the effect is material to the 
original undiscounted provision. The carrying amount 
of the provision increases in each period to reflect the 
passage of time and the unwinding of the discount and 
the movement is recognised in the income statement 
within interest costs.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating 
losses however provisions are recognised for onerous 
contracts where a contract is expected to be loss 
making (and not merely less profitable than expected).

(i) Provision for rehabilitation

Long-term environmental obligations are based on the 
group’s environmental plans, in compliance with current 
regulatory requirements. Provision is made based on 
the net present value of the estimated cost of restoring 
the environmental disturbance that has occurred up to 
the reporting date. The estimated cost of rehabilitation 
is reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate for 
changes in legislation or technology. Cost estimates are 
not reduced by the potential proceeds from the sale of 
assets or from plant clean up at closure, in view of the 
uncertainty of estimating the potential future proceeds. 

Annual contributions will be made to the group’s 
Environmental Rehabilitation Trust Fund to be created in 
accordance with statutory requirements, to provide for 
the funding of the estimated cost of pollution control and 
rehabilitation during, and at the end of the life of mines. 

Expenditure on plant and equipment for pollution control 
is capitalised and depreciated over the useful lives of 
the assets whilst the cost of ongoing current programs 
to prevent and control pollution and to rehabilitate the 
environment is charged against income as incurred.

t)     Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable.

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all 
of the following conditions are satisfied:
•	 The group has transferred to the buyer the 

significant risks and rewards of ownership of the 
goods;

•	 The group retains neither continuing managerial 
involvement to the degree usually associated with 
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

•	 The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
•	 It is probable that the economic benefits associated 

with the transaction will flow to the group; and
•	 The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of 

the transaction can be measured reliably.
		
(ii) Rendering of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is 
recognised by reference to the stage of completion of 
the contract.

(iii) Advertising

Advertising revenues from the group’s free to air 
television and radio platforms are recognised on flighting 
and over the period of the advertising contract.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest 
method. When a receivable is impaired the group 
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount 
by discounting the estimated future cash flows at the 
original effective interest rate, and continuing to unwind 
the discount as interest income.

(v) Royalty income

Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis 
in accordance with the relevant agreements and is 
included in other income.

(vi) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive 
payment is established.

u)     Net gaming win

Net gaming win comprises the net table and slot 
machine win derived by casino and limited payout route 
operations from gambling patrons. In terms of accounting 
standards, betting transactions concluded under 
gaming operations meet the definition of derivatives and 
therefore income from gaming operations represents 
the net position arising from financial instruments. The 

25ANNUAL F INANC IAL  STATEMENTS 2014 HOSKEN CONSOL IDATED INVESTMENTS L IM ITED 



net gaming win is measured as the net cash received 
from betting transactions from casino operations. Due 
to the short term nature of the group’s casino and 
limited payout route operations, all income is recognised 
in profit and loss immediately, at fair value. VAT and 
other taxes, including gaming levies, that are charged 
on casino and limited payout winnings are included in 
net gaming win and are treated as direct costs as these 
are borne by the group and not patrons (see note 2 [iv]).

v)     Leases

(i) The group is the lessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the 
group has substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance 
leases are capitalised at the lease’s inception at the fair 
value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value 
of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is 
allocated between the liability and finance charges so 
as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance 
outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net 
of finance charges, are included in other long-term 
payables. The interest element of the finance cost is 
charged to the income statement over the lease period 
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on 
the remaining balance of the liability for each period. The 
property, plant and equipment acquired under finance 
leases is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s 
useful life and the lease term.

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership are classified as operating 
leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of 
any incentives received from the lessor) are recognised 
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period 
of the lease.

(ii) The group is the lessor

The group recognises finance lease receivables on its 
statement of financial position. Finance income is recognised 
based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of 
return on the group’s net investment in the finance lease. 
Assets leased to third parties under operating leases are 
included in property, plant and equipment in the statement 
of financial position. They are depreciated over their 
expected useful lives on a basis consistent with similar 
owned property, plant and equipment. Rental income 
(net of any incentives given to lessees) is recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the lease term.

w)     Income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and 
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement 

except to the extent that it relates to items recognised 
directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity. 
Current tax expense is based on the results for the 
period as adjusted for items that are not taxable or 
not deductible. The group’s liability for current taxation 
is calculated using tax rates and laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax is provided in full using the statement 
of financial position liability method, in respect of all 
temporary differences arising between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying values in the 
consolidated financial statements, except where the 
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the 
initial recognition (other than a business combination) of 
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects 
neither accounting nor taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised where the carrying 
value of an asset is greater than its tax base, or where 
the carrying value of a liability is less than its tax 
base. Deferred tax is recognised in full on temporary 
differences arising from investment in subsidiaries and 
associates, except where the timing of the reversal 
of the temporary difference is controlled by the group 
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not 
reverse in the foreseeable future.

A net deferred tax asset is regarded as recoverable 
and therefore recognised only when, on the basis of all 
available evidence, it is probable that future taxable profit 
will be available against which the temporary differences 
(including carried forward tax losses) can be utilised. 
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates expected 
to apply in the periods in which the timing differences 
are expected to reverse based on tax rates and laws 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date. Deferred tax is measured on a non-
discounted basis.

x)     Dividend distributions

Dividend distributions to equity holders of the parent 
are recognised as a liability in the group’s financial 
statements in the period in which the dividends are 
approved by the Company’s shareholders. Interim 
dividends are recognised when approved by the board. 
Dividends declared after the reporting date are not 
recognised, as there is no present obligation at the 
reporting date.

y)     Employee benefits

(i) Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a pension or provident plan 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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under which the group pays fixed contributions into a 
separate entity. The group has no legal or constructive 
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does 
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the 
benefits relating to employee service in the current and 
prior periods.

For the defined contribution plans, subsidiaries of the 
group pay contributions to both in-house pension funds 
managed by employer and employee nominated trustees 
and public administered provident plans on a contractual 
basis. The group has no further payment obligations 
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions 
are recognised as employee benefit expenses when they 
are due. The rules of the funds do not allow for prepaid 
contributions.

(ii) Other post-employment obligations

Subsidiaries of the group operate a defined benefit plan 
for a portion of the medical aid members. This fund is 
now closed to new entrants. The assets of the scheme 
are held separately from those of the group and are 
administered by trustees. The liability recognised in the 
statement of financial position in respect of the plan is 
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at 
the reporting date less the fair value of plan assets, 
together with adjustments for unrecognised actuarial 
gains and losses and past service costs. The defined 
benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent 
actuaries using the projected unit credit method. 
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is 
determined by discounting the estimated future cash 
outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate 
bonds that are denominated in the currency in which 
the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity 
approximating to the terms of the related plan liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience 
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognised as income or expense if the net cumulative 
unrecognised actuarial gains and losses at the end of 
the previous reporting period exceeded the greater of:
•	 10% of the present value of the defined benefit 

obligation at that date (before deducting plan 
assets); and

•	 10% of the fair value of any plan assets at that date.

Past service costs are recognised immediately in 
income, unless the changes to the plan are conditional 
on the employees remaining in service for a specified 
period of time (the vesting period). In this case, the past 
service costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over 
the vesting period.

A subsidiary of the group pays a monthly grant to 
the Golden Arrow Employee’s Medical Benefit Fund 

which the Fund uses to cover outgoings not financed 
by members’ contributions. The subsidiary also makes 
monthly payments to Discovery Health in respect of 
certain employees and pensioners.

The cost of providing benefits in respect of retirement 
healthcare is determined separately for each plan 
using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial 
valuations at each reporting date. Past service cost is 
recognised immediately to the extent that benefits have 
already vested, or otherwise amortised on a straight-
line basis over the average period until the amended 
benefits become vested. The amount recognised in the 
statement of financial position represents the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment 
is terminated before the normal retirement date, or 
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy 
in exchange for these benefits. The group recognises 
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed 
to terminating the employment of current employees 
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of 
withdrawal, or providing termination benefits as a result 
of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.

(iv) Bonus plans

The group recognises a liability and an expense for 
bonuses where contractually obliged or where there is a 
past practice that has created a constructive obligation. 
An accrual is maintained for the appropriate proportion 
of the expected bonuses which would become payable 
at the year-end.

(v) Share based payments

The group grants share options to employees in terms 
of the HCI Employee Share Trust (2001). In terms of 
IFRS 2 these options are fair valued at the date of grant 
and the fair value determined on the date of grant 
recognised as an expense over the relevant vesting 
periods. The fair value of options granted is measured 
using the Black Scholes Model.

z)     Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated on the weighted average 
number of shares in issue, net of treasury shares, in 
respect of the year and is based on profit attributable 
to ordinary shareholders. Headline earnings per share 
is calculated in terms of the requirements set out in 
Circular 03/2012 issued by SAICA.
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aa) 	 Government grants

Government grants are recognised as other income 
when there is reasonable assurance that the Group will 
comply with the relevant conditions attached to them 
and that the grant will be received.

Grants that compensate the group for expenditure 
incurred are recognised in profit or loss as other income 
in the period in which it becomes reasonably assured 
that the grant will be received.

2.    Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and 
are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Principles of critical accounting estimates and 
assumptions

(i) The group makes estimates and assumptions 
concerning the future. 

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, 
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates 
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing 
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed 
below.

(ii) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered 
any impairment, in accordance with the accounting 
policy stated in Note 1(e). The recoverable amounts of 
cash generating units have been determined based on 
value in use calculations. 

These calculations require the use of estimates – see 
note 3 for details.

(iii) Income taxes

The group is subject to income taxes in numerous 
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in 
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes. 
There are many transactions and calculations for which 
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the 
ordinary course of business. The group recognises 
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on 
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where 
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from 
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences 
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in 
the period in which such determination is made.

(iv) Net gaming win

The group regards the national VAT levied on net gaming 
win to be comparable with the gaming levies which are 
paid to provincial gaming boards. These are seen as 
direct costs of the group as they are borne entirely by 
the group and have no effect on casino activities from 
the punters’ perspective.

In the casino industry, the nature of betting transactions 
makes it difficult to separate bets placed by customers 
and winnings paid to punters. It therefore follows that 
casinos experience practical difficulties reflecting output 
tax separately from input tax. Accordingly, SARS allows 
casinos to account for VAT by applying the tax fraction 
to the net betting transaction. Provincial gaming levies 
are calculated on a similar basis by applying the tax 
fraction to the net betting transaction. Any change 
in either the VAT rate or the provincial gaming levies 
would be absorbed entirely by the group and would 
have no impact on the punters. The group thus treats 
VAT and other taxes levied on casino winnings as direct 
costs. These costs are included in net gaming win 
which is disclosed separately on the face of the income 
statement.

(v) Deferred tax assets

Management has applied a probability analysis to 
determine future taxable income against which 
calculated tax losses will be utilised. 

(vi) Property, plant and equipment, excluding land

Changes in business landscape or technical innovations 
may impact the useful lives and estimated residual 
values of these assets. Similar assets are grouped 
together, but residual values and useful lives may vary 
significantly between individual assets in a category. 
Management reviews assets’ residual values, useful 
lives and related depreciation charges annually at each 
reporting date.

(vii) Inventory valuation

The group manufactures and trades with perishable 
products. Judgement is required to determine the 
saleability of these products. In addition, a significant 
portion of the group’s matured wines and brandies have 
a lengthy production cycle. The saleability and valuation 
of work-in-progress inventories are dependent on 
market and consumer trends. Stringent quality control, 
detailed sales planning and forecasting and procurement 
planning are key factors in ensuring that the valuation of 
the group’s inventory is reasonable.
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3. New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to existing Standards issued that are not yet effective: 

3.1 Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published that are mandatory 
for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2014  or later periods which the Group has not early adopted:
 

Standard Details of Amendment
Annual periods 
beginning on or after

IFRS 2
Share-based payments

Annual Improvements 2010 – 2012 Cycle: amendments added the 
definitions of performance conditions and service conditions and 
amended the definitions of vesting conditions and market conditions.

The Group will apply the 
IFRS 2 amendments 
from annual periods 
beginning 1 April 2015

IFRS 3
Business Combinations

• Annual Improvements 2010 – 2012 Cycle: amendments to the 
measurement requirements for all contingent consideration 
assets and liabilities including those accounted for under IFRS 9.

• Annual Improvements 2011 – 2013 Cycle: amendments to 
the scope paragraph for the formation of a joint arrangement.

The Group will apply the 
IFRS 3 amendments 
from annual periods 
beginning 1 April 2015

The Group will apply the 
IFRS 3 amendments 
from annual periods 
beginning 1 April 2015

IFRS 8
Operating Segments

Annual Improvements 2010 – 2012 Cycle: amendments to some 
disclosure requirements regarding the judgements made by 
management in applying the aggregation criteria, as well as those 
to certain reconciliations.

The Group will apply the 
IFRS 8 amendments 
from annual periods 
beginning 1 April 2015

IFRS 9
Financial Statements

The IASB aims to replace IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement’ (IAS 39) in its entirety with IFRS 
9. To date, the chapters dealing with recognition, classification, 
measurement, de-recognition of financial assets and liabilities 
and hedge accounting have been issued. Chapters dealing with 
impairment methodology are still being developed. Further, in 
November 2011, the IASB tentatively decided to consider making 
limited modifications to IFRS 9’s financial asset classification 
model to address application issues.

The Group will apply the 
IFRS 9 amendments 
from annual periods 
beginning 1 April 2018

IFRS 10
Consolidated Financial 
Investments

IFRS 10 exception to the principle that all subsidiaries must be 
consolidated. Entities meeting the definition of ‘Investment Entities’ 
must be accounted for at fair value under IFRS 9, Financial Instruments, 
or IAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

The Group will apply the 
IFRS 10 amendments 
from annual periods 
beginning 1 April 2014

IFRS 11
Joint arrangements

Amendments to provide guidance on the accounting for the 
acquisition of an interest in a joint operation in which the activity of 
the joint operation constitutes a business.

The Group will apply the 
IFRS 11 amendments 
from annual periods 
beginning 1 April 2016

IFRS 12
Disclosure of Interest 
in Other Entities

New disclosures required for Investment Entities (as defined 
in IFRS 10).

The Group will apply the 
IFRS 12 amendments 
from annual periods 
beginning 1 April 2014
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Standard Details of Amendment
Annual periods 
beginning on or after

IFRS 13
Fair Value 
Measurement

•	 Annual Improvements 2010 – 2012 Cycle: amendments to 
clarify the measurement requirements for those short-term 
receivables and payables

•	 Annual Improvements 2011 – 2013 Cycle: amendments to clarify 
that the portfolio exception applies to all contracts within the scope 
of, and accounted for in accordance with, IAS 39 or IFRS 9

The Group will apply the 
IFRS 13 amendments 
from annual periods 
beginning 1 April 2014

The Group will apply the 
IFRS 13 amendments 
from annual periods 
beginning 1 April 2014

IAS 19
Employee Benefits

Amendments to Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions 
whereby the requirements in IAS 19 for contributions from employees 
or third parties that are linked to service have been amended.

The Group will apply the 
IAS 19 amendments 
from annual periods 
beginning 1 April 2014

IAS 24
Related Party 
Disclosures

Clarification of the definition of a related party.

The Group will apply the 
IAS 24 amendments 
from annual periods 
beginning 1 April 2014

IAS 36
Impairment Assets

The amendment to IAS 36 clarifies the required disclosures of 
information about the recoverable amount of impaired assets if 
that amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal

The Group will apply the 
IAS 36 amendments 
from annual periods 
beginning 1 April 2014

IAS 38 
Intangible Assets

•	 Annual Improvements 2010 – 2012 Cycle: Amendments 
to the revaluation method  - proportionate restatement of 
accumulated depreciation.

•	 Amendments present a rebuttable presumption that a 
revenue-based amortisation method for intangible assets is 
inappropriate except in two limited circumstances, as well as 
provide guidance in the application of the diminishing balance 
method for intangible assets.

The Group will apply the 
IAS 38 amendments 
from annual periods 
beginning 1 April 2014

The Group will apply the 
IAS 38 amendments 
from annual periods 
beginning 1 April 2016

IAS 40 
Investment Properties

Annual Improvements 2011 – 2013 Cycle: amendments to 
clarify the interrelationship between IFRS 3 and IAS 40 when 
classifying property as investment property or owner-occupied 
property

The Group will apply the 
IAS 40 amendments 
from annual periods 
beginning 1 April 2014

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The directors have considered the impact of the standards and do not expect a material impact on the financial 
statements of the Group.
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Group Company

2014 2013* 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

01. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost

Broadcast studios and equipment   655 517   555 802 

Buses  1 155 136  1 071 069 

Land and bui ld ings  1 178 287  1 311 233 

Leasehold improvements   162 639   99 000 

Mining infrastructure   168 429   68 357 

Other equipment and vehic les  1 278 105  1 743 055 

Plant and machinery  1 555 273  1 611 949 

Propert ies under construct ion   1 311  1 565 

 6 154 697  6 462 030 

Accumulated depreciat ion

Broadcast studios and equipment  (488 289)  (420 090)

Buses  (388 207)  (318 406)

Land and bui ld ings  (33 573)  (47 726)

Leasehold improvements  (64 271)  (45 784)

Mining infrastructure  (32 939)  (17 018)

Other equipment and vehic les  (696 214)  (893 561)

Plant and machinery  (715 626)  (760 036)

Propert ies under construct ion  -    -   

 (2 419 119)  (2 502 621)

Carry ing value

Broadcast studios and equipment   167 228   135 712 

Buses   766 929   752 663 

Land and bui ld ings  1 144 714  1 263 507 

Leasehold improvements   98 368   53 216 

Mining infrastructure   135 490   51 339 

Other equipment and vehic les   581 891   849 494

Plant and machinery   839 647   851 913 

Propert ies under construct ion   1 311   1 565 

 3 735 578  3 959 409 

* Restated
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 

Group Company

2014 2013* 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont inued)

Movements in property, p lant and equipment

Balance at beginning of year

Broadcast studios and equipment   135 712   135 606 

Buses   752 663   625 974 

Land and bui ld ings  1 263 507   813 031 

Leasehold improvements   53 216   48 345 

Mining infrastructure   51 339   33 678 

Other equipment and vehic les   849 494   606 525 

Plant and machinery   851 913   669 602 

Propert ies under construct ion   1 565  -   

 3 959 409  2 932 761 

Addit ions

Broadcast studios and equipment   101 081   71 479 

Buses   95 772   189 709 

Land and bui ld ings   28 789   99 747 

Leasehold improvements   60 622   17 770 

Mining infrastructure   100 874   19 542 

Other equipment and vehic les   331 135   285 237 

Plant and machinery   104 417   60 899 

Propert ies under construct ion  -      215 

  822 690   744 598 

Business combinat ions and di lut ion of interest in 
subsidiar ies*

Land and bui ld ings  -     413 569 

Leasehold improvements  -     1 375 

Other equipment and vehic les   3 234   64 764 

Plant and machinery   10 686   173 965 

Propert ies under construct ion  -     1 356 

  13 920   655 029 

* Restated
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Group Company

2014 2013* 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont inued)

Transfer to disposal group assets held for sale

Land and bui ld ings  (90 239)  (2 295)

Leasehold improvements  (106)  -   

Other equipment and vehic les  (441 686)  -   

Plant and machinery  (2 936)  (248)

 (534 967)  (2 543)

Disposals and transfers

Broadcast studios and equipment  (1 366)  (533)

Buses  (4 720)  (3 924)

Land and bui ld ings  (53 623)  (58 561)

Leasehold improvements  (99)  (17)

Mining infrastructure  (803)  -   

Other equipment and vehic les  (21 439)  (10 716)

Plant and machinery  (43 997)  (6 767)

Propert ies under construct ion  (254)  (6)

 (126 301)  (80 524)

Depreciat ion

Broadcast studios and equipment  (67 815)  (67 905)

Buses  (76 786)  (59 096)

Land and bui ld ings  (8 751)  (8 433)

Leasehold improvements  (14 452)  (13 408)

Mining infrastructure  (15 920)  (1 881)

Other equipment and vehic les  (199 001)  (161 760)

Plant and machinery  (79 677)  (61 174)

 (462 402)  (373 657)

Impairments

Broadcast studios and equipment  (151)  (2 894)

Leasehold improvements  (826)  (849)

Other equipment and vehic les  (3 525)  (2 387)

Plant and machinery  (2 052)  (6 367)

 (6 554)  (12 497)

* Restated
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Group Company

2014 2013* 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont inued)

Impairment reversals

Plant and machinery  -     21 885 

Currency translat ion

Broadcast studios and equipment  (233)  (41)

Land and bui ld ings   5 031   6 449 

Leasehold improvements    13  -   

Other equipment and vehic les   64 616   67 831 

Plant and machinery    356    118 

  69 783   74 357 

Balances at end of year

Broadcast studios and equipment   167 228   135 712 

Buses   766 929   752 663 

Land and bui ld ings  1 144 714  1 263 507 

Leasehold improvements   98 368   53 216 

Mining infrastructure   135 490   51 339 

Other equipment and vehic les   581 891   849 494

Plant and machinery   839 647   851 913

Propert ies under construct ion   1 311   1 565 

 3 735 578  3 959 409 

Internal restructuring as well as changes in the 

dynamics of the market in which certain businesses 

within the clothing and texti le segments operate, 

resulted in better than expected performances. 

Impairment testing of these plants resulted in the 

impairment losses recorded in previous reporting 

periods to be reversed in the 2013 financial year. 

A register of land and bui ld ings is avai lable for 

inspect ion at the registered of f ice of the company.

 

Encumbrances

Detai ls of the assets that serve as security for 

borrowings are presented in note 22.

* Restated

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

02. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment propert ies consist of:

   Bare dominiums   30 533   28 995 

   Other investment propert ies  1 664 999   878 508 

 1 695 532   907 503 

Investment propert ies are stated at fa ir value. 

Measurement of fa ir value

The fa ir value of the dominiums is determined based on 

external valuat ions, contracts and taking credit r isk into 

account. Bonds are registered over the bare dominiums. 

The fair value of certain investment properties owned by the 

Group’s property interests, totalling R120,1 million at 31 March 

2014, has been arrived at on the basis of an external valuation 

carried out at 31 March 2012 by Mr Conrad Penny, an independent 

valuer not related to the Group. The fair value of the remaining 

investment properties owned by the Group’s property interests, 

totalling R50 million at 31 March 2014, was arrived at on the 

basis of an external valuation carried out at 31 March 2011 by Mr 

Conrad Penny. The fair values of these properties were assessed 

to have not changed substantially since the last revaluation, thus 

no fair value adjustments were required during the current year.

The fair value of investment properties owned by the Group's 

clothing, textiles and toys interests at 31 March 2014, totalling 

R670 million, has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation carried 

out at 31 March 2014 by David Newham Property Management Co. 

(Pty) Ltd, an independent valuer not related to the Group.

Properties with a carrying value of R822 million are held at cost 

as they are still wholly or partially under construction and the 

fair values could not be reliably measured at year end.

The fair value measurement of other investment properties, 

totall ing R34 mill ion, has been arrived at on the basis of an 

internal valuation, and has been categorised as a level 3 fair 

value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used.
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (cont inued)

Detai ls of investment propert ies are avai lable at 

the registered of f ice of the company.

Reconci l iat ion of carry ing value

At beginning of year   907 503   557 886 

Business combinat ions  -      707 

Fair value adjustments   23 284   427 

Transfer from property, p lant and equipment   49 301   104 496

Transfer to non-current assets held for sale  (1 850) -

Addit ions   260 783   205 401 

Disposals  (1 000)  -   

Improvements   457 511   38 586 

At end of year  1 695 532   907 503 

Rental  income from investment property   153 139   102 388 

Direct operating expenses arising from investment 

property that generated rental income during the period

Direct operating expenses arising from investment 

property that did not generate rental income during 

the period 

 37 900   40 247 

805 -

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

03. GOODWILL

Aris ing on acquisit ion of shares in subsidiar ies   279 011   256 470 

Reconci l iat ion of carry ing value

At beginning of year   256 470   186 212 

- Cost   401 789   330 447 

- Accumulated impairment  (145 319)  (144 235)

Business combinat ions   16 957  65 337 

Business combinat ions as previously stated   16 957   3 134 

Restatement (refer note 48)  - 62 203   

Impairment  (329)    (1 084)

Effects of foreign exchange di f ferences   5 913   6 005 

At end of year   279 011   256 470 

- Cost   424 659   401 789 

- Accumulated impairment  (145 648)  (145 319)

Goodwill relates mainly to the Group’s limited payout 

gaming (2014: R70,8 million; 2013: R70,8 million), 

media and broadcasting (2014: R162 million; 2013: 

R153,7 million), information technology (2014: R24,3 

million; 2013: R24.3 million) and clothing, textiles and 

toys (2014: R14,2 million; 2013: Rnil) interests. The 

value of  CGU’s to which goodwill has been allocated 

has been determined based on value in use calculations 

using management generated cash flow projections. 

The following were the principal assumptions, based 

on past experience, that were used to calculate the 

net present value of those CGU’s :                                                                                                        

Pre tax discount rates :                   10% - 17%

Number of years:                                5 years 

Cost growth rate:                              5% - 7%

The recoverable amounts of the cash generat ing 

units, except Niveus Gaming and Entertainment 

Proprietary Limited were determined to be higher 

than the relevant port ion of goodwi l l  and therefore 

no impairment was necessary.
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04. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Group 2014

Carrying value at beginning of year  6 712  33 685  73 091  100 165  62 532 

Addit ions  1 075  14 398  1 618  10 344  8 234 

Foreign exchange di f ferences  -    -     869  1 229  -   

Disposals  -   (107)  -    -    -   

Amortisat ion  (465)  (10 956)  (4 395)  (1 381)  -   

Impairment  -    (4 117)  -    -    -   

Transfers to disposal group held for sale  -    -    -    -    -   

Carrying value at end of year  7 322  32 903  71 183  110 357  70 766 

Cost  8 481  75 523  95 825  115 191  78 528 

Accumulated amort isat ion  (1 159)  (42 620)  (24 642)  (1 834)  (7 762)

 7 322  32 903  71 183  110 357  70 766 

Group 2013

Carrying value at beginning of year  5 596  19 165  5 530  1 046  48 219 

Addit ions  1 500  17 914  1 055  -    14 313 

Business combinat ions and d i lut ion o f 

interest  in  subs id iar ies*

 -   
 3 753  65 842  101 118

 -   

Foreign exchange di f ferences  -    -     912  -    -   

Disposals  -    -    -    -    -   

Amort isat ion  (384)  (7 147)  (248)  (1 999)  -   

Transfers  -    -    -    -    -   

Carry ing value at end of year  6 712  33 685  73 091  100 165  62 532 

Cost  7 407  63 279  92 672  103 618  62 560 

Accumulated amort isat ion  (695)  (29 594)  (19 581)  (3 453)  (28)

 6 712  33 685  73 091  100 165  62 532 

Bid costs

Computer 

software Trademarks Licences 

Programming 

under 

development

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

* Restated. Refer to note 48.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38



 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cont inued)

Group 2014

Carrying value at beginning of year  310 712  85 481  28 264  182 312  -    882 954 

Addit ions  141 321  -    -     445  8 741  186 176 

Foreign exchange di f ferences  21 040  11 758  4 104  25 325  -  64 322 

Disposals  (2 140)  -    -    -    -    (2 247)

Amortisat ion  (68 188)  (13 950)  -    (24 488)  (64)  (123 884)

Impairment  -    -    -    -    -    (4 117)

Transfers to disposal group held for sale  -    (83 289)  (32 368)  (183 594)  (8 677)  (307 928)

Carrying value at end of year  402 745  -    -    -    -    695 276 

Cost  636 451  -    -    -    -    1 009 999 

Accumulated amort isat ion  (233 706)  -    -    -    -    (314 723)

 402 745  -    -    -    -    695 276 

Group 2013

Carrying value at beginning of year  239 741  81 583  38 448  169 926 -  609 254 

Addit ions  94 803  -    -     19 -  129 604 

Business combinat ions and d i lut ion o f 

interest  in  subs id iar ies*  -    -    -    -   -  169 668 

Foreign exchange di f ferences  13 202  16 684  7 858  34 720 -  73 376 

Disposals  -    -    (18 042) - - (18 042)

Amort isat ion  (37 564)  (12 786)  -    (22 353) -  (82 481)

Transfers   530  -    -    -   -   530 

Carry ing value at end of year  310 712  85 481  28 264  182 312  -    881 909 

Cost  364 307  159 515  28 264  327 996 -  1 208 573 

Accumulated amort isat ion  (53 595)  (74 034)  -    (145 684) -  (326 664)

 310 712  85 481  28 264  182 312 -  881 909 

Distr ibut ion 

r ights

Customer 

contracts

Emission 

allowances Gas r ights Interconnection Total

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

* Restated. Refer to note 48.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cont inued)

The amort isat ion expense has been included 

in the l ine item depreciat ion and amort isat ion 

in the income statement.

The fo l lowing useful  l ives were used in the 

calculat ion of amort isat ion:

Bid costs 1 to 7 years

Computer software 1 to 5 years

Customer contracts 15 years

Distr ibut ion r ights ***

Emission al lowances ****

Gas r ights 12 to 20 years

Interconnect ion 10 years

Licences period of l icence

Management contract indef in ite

Programming under development **

Trademarks 23 years

** Programming under development has not 

yet been brought into use. The assets were 

tested for impairment and no impairment was 

required. Once brought into use the assets 

would be transferred to programme rights.

*** Distribution rights represent multi-territory and 

multi-platform programming rights that the group 

is able to on sell to other broadcasters. These 

rights are amortised over the estimated useful 

life, based on the territory and platform for which 

the respective rights have been on sold.

**** Emission allowances consist of credits that need 

to be applied to Nitrous Oxide (N2O) emissions 

from internal combustion engines. These engines 

emit levels of N2O for which specific allowances 

are required in certain states of the United States 

of America. Certain assets acquired through the 

acquisition of a subsidiary by Montauk Energy 

Holdings, LLC qualify for N2O allowances. These 

have been recognised at fair value at date of 

acquisition and will be amortised only when 

brought into use.

Encumbrances

Detai ls of the assets that serve as security 

for borrowings are presented in note 22.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Evaluation and 

explorat ion

Development 

expenditure

Total

R'000 R'000 R'000

05. INTANGIBLE ASSETS MINING

Group 2014

Carrying value at beginning of year  9 334  92 873  102 207 

Amortisat ion  -    (3 287)  (3 287)

Rehabi l i tat ion provis ion released  -    3 977  3 977 

Addit ions  22  8 692  8 714 

Carrying value at end of year  9 356  102 255  111 611 

Group 2013

Carrying value at beginning of year  9 271  82 823  92 094 

Amort isat ion  -    (1 861)  (1 861)

Rehabi l i tat ion provis ion released  -    4 894  4 894 

Addit ions  63  7 017  7 080 

Carry ing value at end of year  9 334  92 873  102 207 
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS MINING (cont inued)

Additions include capitalised expenses such as geology costs, 

engineering costs, environmental costs, feasibil ity costs, 

consultants fees and mining staff costs.

Capitalised development expenditure is tested annually for 

impairment in accordance with IAS 38. The recoverable 

amount of the cash generating units has been determined with 

reference to a discounted cash flow valuation of the mines. 

An inflation rate of 6% (2013: 6%) has been applied on cash 

flows that have been discounted at 11% (2013: 11%).

The fo l lowing assumptions have been appl ied when reviewing 

capital ised development expenditure for impairment:

Future expected prof its have been est imated using 

budgeted project cash f lows extending over 564 months 

for the Palesa mine ( including Rooiport reserve) and 53 

months for the Mbal i  mine.

Sales growth and gross margins were based on expected 

sales pr ices and sales volumes for export and in land coal. 

Sales and sales pr ices were assumed to grow in l ine with 

expansion and expected inf lat ion as wel l  as tak ing pr ices 

per sale agreements into account.

Costs were assumed to grow in l ine with expansion and 

expected inf lat ion.                                                                                                               

The recoverable amount of the cash generat ing units were 

determined to exceed the net asset value of the mines as 

at 31 March 2014 (excluding the ef fect of the shareholder 

f inancing) and therefore no impairment was necessary.

Capital ised development assets are amort ised over the 

total  expected tons to be produced during the l i fe of the 

mine. The total  expected tons to be produced for the 

Palesa mine is 75 000 000 tons and Mbal i  mine is 8 445 

215 tons and the actual tons produced during the year was 

2 953 345 tons and 163 341 tons, respect ively. 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
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06. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Set out below are the associates which, in the opin ion 

of the directors, are materia l  to the Group. The ent it ies 

l isted below have share capital  consist ing sole ly of ordinary 

shares, which are held direct ly by the Group. The country 

of incorporat ion or registrat ion is a lso their pr incipal  p lace 

of business, and the proport ion of ownership interest is the 

same as the proport ion of vot ing r ights held.

Place of 

business/country 

of incorporat ion

Group’s

interest

Name of associates Principal  act iv ity 2014 2013

Business Systems Group Proprietary Limited South Africa Information technology 40% 40%

Cape Town Film Studios Proprietary Limited South Africa Media 42% 42%

Da Vinci  Media GmbH Germany Media 33% 33%

The Afr ica Channel L imited United Kingdom Media 47% 47%

Tsogo Sun Holdings Limited South Africa Hotel and casino operator 41% 41%

Group Company

Carry ing value Carry ing value

2014 2013 2014 2013

Name of associates R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Business Systems Group Proprietary Limited  20 758  18 272  3 000  3 000 

Cape Town Film Studios Proprietary Limited  47 041  44 939  -    -   

Da Vinci  Media GmbH  52 902  39 636  -    -   

The Afr ica Channel L imited  47 531  37 869  -    -   

Tsogo Sun Holdings Limited  9 348 960  8 857 961  -    -   

Other  associates**  103 648  84 517  -    -   

 9 620 840  9 083 194  3 000  3 000 

Directors valuat ion of unl isted associates  271 880  225 233 

Market valuat ion of l isted investment in 

Tsogo Sun Holdings Limited 

 
11 515 873 

 

11 256 630 

** A l ist of these is avai lable for inspection 

at the company's registered off ice.
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Business 

Systems Group 

Proprietary 

Limited

Cape Town 

Film Studios 

Proprietary 

Limited

Da Vinci 

Media GmbH

The Afr ica 

Channel 

L imited

Tsogo Sun 

Holdings 

Limited

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The summarised financial information in 

respect of the Group's principal associates 

is set out below:

Summarised statement of financial position

Non-current assets  10 533  276 796  22 846  670  17 955 045 

Current assets  50 626  4 011  51 644  10 943  2 458 883 

Non-current l iabi l i t ies  (1 497)  (146 130)  -    (69 590)  (7 158 191) 

Current l iabi l i t ies  (11 857)  (159 433)  (21 562)  (11 736)  (2 734 000) 

Net assets  47 805  (24 756)  52 928  (69 713)  10 521 737 

Reconciliation to carrying amounts:

Opening net assets 1 Apri l  2013  41 590  (18 519)  31 234  (53 113)  9 121 737 

Prof it  ( loss) for the year  7 701  (6 237)  (231)  (15 177)  1 972 472 

Other comprehensive income  -    -    -    -    181 419 

Other equity movements  -    -    21 924  (1 423)  143 966 

Div idends paid  (1 486)  -    -    -    (897 857)

Closing net assets 31 March 2014  47 805  (24 756)  52 927  (69 713)  10 521 737 

Group’s share in % 40% 42% 33% 47% 41%

Group’s share in R'000  19 122  (10 398)  17 466  (32 765)  4 313 912 

Goodwi l l  1 636  57 439  35 436  80 296  5 035 048 

Carry ing amount  20 758  47 041  52 902  47 531  9 348 960 

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Revenue   98 891   29 176   59 210   18 769  3 948 494 

Net gaming win  -    -    -    -    6 818 800 

Prof it  ( loss) from operat ions   7 701  (6 237)  (231)  (15 177)  1 972 472 

Prof it  ( loss) for the period   7 701  (6 237)  (231)  (15 177)  1 972 472 

Other comprehensive income  -    -    -    -     181 419 

Total  comprehensive income ( loss)   7 701  (6 237)  (231)  (15 177)  2 153 891 

Div idends received from associates    594  -    -    -     363 581 

Group's share of associates prof its 

( losses) for the year

  3 080  (2 650)  (65)  (7 201)   779 791 

2014 2013

R'000 R'000

Group's share of associates:

- Cont ingent commitments   816 673   507 937 

-  Capital  commitments  1 771 200  1 331 099 
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07. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT ARRANGEMENTS

The fo l lowing are the Group's 

pr incipal  jo int arrangements:

Group’s Group

 interest Carry ing value

2014 2013 2014 2013

Name of jo int arrangements Principal  act iv ity R'000 R'000

Baycorp Holdings Proprietary Limited Debt collection service provider 53% 53%  319 431  357 488 

Clare Developments Proprietary Limited Property 50% 50%  27 522  -   

HCI Property Investments Proprietary Limited Property 50% 50%   223  15 660 

Regal Holdings Proprietary Limited Property 50% 50%  6 180  5 366 

 353 356  378 514 

Cost  407 109  421 538 

Accumulated impairment  (53 753)  (43 024)

Carry ing value  353 356  378 514 

Due to both operational and competitive reasons, the investment in 

Baycorp Holdings Proprietary Limited was tested for impairment in the 

prior year, resulting in the carrying value being impaired R43 million. 

No impairment was required in the current year. Currency fluctuations 

have been taken into account in the carrying value of this investment, 

resulting in an increased accumulated impairment balance.

A restructuring of the underlying assets of HCI Property Investments 

Proprietary Limited was considered to be an indication of impairment by 

management. The impairment test resulted in the carrying value of the 

investment being impaired by R5,9 million. The carrying value was further 

reduced by the dividend declared to shareholders during the year. 

The summarised f inancia l  information in respect of the Group’s 

pr incipal  jo int arrangements is set out below:

Current assets  592 547  574 395 

Non-current assets  1 007 955  900 434 

Current l iabi l i t ies  (151 002)  (223 620)

Non-current l iabi l i t ies  (641 551)  (519 650)

Income  616 531  321 660 

Expenses  (713 148)  (284 037)

Group's share of joint arrangements' losses for the year  (12 383)  (20 883)

Group's share of jo int arrangements'  capital  commitments  -    -   
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

08. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financia l  assets carr ied at fa ir value through 
prof it  or loss

Foreign currency exchange contracts  15 723  1 566 

Equity securit ies  22 294  64 679 

 38 017  66 245 

Avai lable for sale investments held at fa ir value 

Equity securit ies  3 644  3 580 

Redeemable preferences shares  -    95 867 

Other  5 244  5 282 

 8 888  104 729 

Financia l  assets held at amort ised cost

Restr icted cash held in escrow  -    49 082 

 46 905  220 056 

Current port ion  37 742  163 267 

Non-current port ion  9 163  56 789 

 46 905  220 056 

Fa ir  va lue o f  der ivat ive f inanc ia l  instruments 
carr ied at  fa i r  va lue through prof i t  or  loss

The fa ir value of derivat ives was based upon market 

valuat ions. The net market value of a l l  forward 

exchange contracts at year end was calculated 

by comparing the forward exchange contracted 

rates to the equivalent year end market foreign 

exchange rates.

Fair value of equity securit ies carr ied at fa ir value 
through prof it  or loss

The fa ir value of the l isted equity instruments was 

determined using the quoted price avai lable for 

the instruments.

Fair value of redeemable preference shares held 
as avai lable-for-sale

The fa ir value of the l isted redeemable preference 

shares was determined using the quoted price 

avai lable for the instruments.
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Company

2014 2013

 R'000  R'000 

09. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

Shares at cost less impairment  14 450 955  1 508 511 

Amounts owing by subsidiary companies 4 617 580  2 236 277 

 19 068 535  3 744 788 

Amounts owing to subsidiary companies  (369 581)  (74 961)

 18 698 954  3 669 827 

These loans are interest free and have no set repayment dates.

Interests in subsidiar ies

Set out below are the group's subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests 

that are material to the group at year end. Unless otherwise stated, the 

subsidiaries have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which 

are held directly by the group, and the proportion of ownership interests 

held equals the voting rights held by the group. The country of incorporation 

or registration is also their principal place of business.

# The investment is held through var ious intermediary companies 

control led by the group, result ing in exercisable vot ing r ights being 

in excess of ef fect ive economic interest

Signi f icant restr ict ions

There are no significant statutory, contractual or regulatory 

restrictions on the group's ability to access or use the assets and 

settle the liabilties of the group.

There are no contractual arrangements in place for the provision 

of financial support to any of the principal subsidiaries, nor has 

there been any financial or other support provided to these entities 

during the reporting period. There is no current intention of providing 

financial  or other support to these entities.

 Place of business/Country 
of incorporation Name of entity Principal activities

KWV Holdings Limited Alcoholic beverage producer  South Afr ica 

Oceania Capital  Partners Limited Investment holding  Austral ia 

Sabido Investments Proprietary Limited Media and broadcasting  South Afr ica 

Seardel Investment Corporation Limited Clothing, textiles and toys  South Afr ica 

 % of effective interest 
held by the group

 % exercisable
 voting rights

% of effective interest held by 
the non-controlling interests (NCI) Name of entity

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

KWV Holdings Limited # 28.5% 27.3% 51.6% 51.6% 71.5% 71.5%

Oceania Capital  Partners Limited 67.7% 67.7% 67.7% 67.7% 32.3% 32.3%

Sabido Investments Proprietary Limited # 47.4% 63.8% 63.9% 63.9% 52.6% 36.2%

Seardel Investment Corporation Limited 73.5% 76.1% 80.8% 81.1% 26.5% 23.9%
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SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (cont inued)

Non-control l ing interests

Set out below is summarised financial information 

for each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests 

(NCI) that are material to the group. The amounts 

disclosed for each subsidiary are before inter-company 

eliminations.

KWV Holdings Oceania Capital Partners

Limited##  Limited 

2014 2013### 2014 2013

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Summarised statement of financial position

Non-current assets  738 991  733 840  488 423  573 904 

Current assets  1 355 787  1 323 092  347 954  239 333 

Non-current l iabi l i t ies  (107 555)  (112 055)  (50 548)  (1 005) 

Current l iabi l i t ies (352 759)  (310 043)  (12 975)  (13 604) 

Net assets  1 634 464  1 634 834  772 854  798 628 

Accumulated non-control l ing interests  743 354  791 184  252 201  260 348 

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Revenue  1 110 212  233 764  84 530  16 618 

Prof it( loss) for the year  (1 037)  (7 002)  (45 733)  (27 691)

Other comprehensive income ( loss)  667  157  11 129  1 998 

Total  comprehensive income ( loss) for the year  (370)  (6 845)  (34 604)  (25 693)

Prof it  ( loss) a l located to non-control l ing interests  (877)  (3 149)  (14 625)  (2 121)

Div idends paid to non-control l ing interests  -    -    -    -   

Summarised cash flows

Cash f lows from operat ing act iv it ies  41 317  12 311  1 869  (12 802)

Cash f lows from invest ing act iv it ies  (17 655)  (7 479)  95 831  (131 913)

Cash f lows from f inancing act iv it ies  -    -    51 986  105 101 

## f igures include acquisit ion accounting entr ies.

### Statement of comprehensive income is for three 

months of trading as control  was ef fect ive on 11 

December 2012. 
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Sabido Investments Proprietary Seardel Investment Corporation

Limited##  Limited 

2014 2013 2014 2013

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES (cont inued)

Summarised statement of financial position

Non-current assets  1 257 733  999 760  2 971 894  1 388 252 

Current assets  981 514  831 906  1 055 914  1 136 387 

Non-current l iabi l i t ies  (308 160)  (163 267)  (113 423)  (93 662) 

Current l iabi l i t ies  (466 733)  (343 968)  (1 060 334)  (970 391) 

Net assets  1 464 354  1 324 431  2 854 051  1 460 586 

Accumulated non-control l ing interests  692 913  459 039  349 363  342 252 

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

Revenue  2 364 039  2 125 384  2 163 518  1 845 524 

Prof it( loss) for the year  447 897  551 739  4 061  40 851 

Other comprehensive income ( loss)  -    -    (9 744)  17 756 

Total  comprehensive income ( loss) for the year  447 897  551 739  (5 683)  58 607 

Prof it  ( loss) a l located to non-control l ing interests  162 766  177 698  9 367  9 907 

Div idends paid to non-control l ing interests  116 739  212 594  -    -   

Summarised cash flows

Cash f lows from operat ing act iv it ies  579 901  596 839  217 444  202 584 

Cash f lows from invest ing act iv it ies  (380 304)  (41 705)  (191 614)  (210 751)

Cash f lows from f inancing act iv it ies  (135 628)  (639 464)  99 646  (45 859)

Ful l  detai ls of subsidiary companies are provided in 

Annexure A.
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

10. DEFERRED TAX

Movements in deferred taxat ion

At beginning of year  (156 419)  (29 970)   

Asset revaluat ions  (11 247)   681 

Accelerated tax al lowances  (37 692)  (35 702)

Provis ions and accruals  14 715  (1 074)

Assessed losses  39 294  20 246 

Business combinations: Accelerated tax allowances*  (1 023)  (77 295)   

Other  2 874  (33 305)

At end of year  (149 498)  (156 419)

Analysis of deferred taxat ion

Accelerated tax al lowances*  (375 955)  (368 669)

Provis ions and accruals  114 554  104 395 

Deferred revenue  4 761   612 

Asset revaluat ions  (136 883)  (117 105)

Assessed losses  239 983  215 351 

Other  4 042  8 997 

 (149 498)  (156 419)

Composit ion of deferred taxat ion

Deferred taxat ion assets  127 941  84 189 

Deferred taxat ion l iabi l i t ies  (277 439)  (240 608)

 (149 498)  (156 419)

There are tax losses in respect of  six subsidiary 

companies. The directors have considered the 

future profitabil ity of these entities and on the basis 

that they are projected to produce taxable income 

in the foreseeable future, these deferred tax assets 

are considered fully recoverable. Tax losses have 

been recognised by these subsidiaries to the extent 

considered recoverable.

11. OPERATING LEASE EQUALISATION 

Straight- l in ing of operat ing leases

Assets  27 185  8 276 

Liabi l i t ies  (3 596)  (118)

 23 589  8 158 

* Restated. Refer to note 48.
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

12. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

Finance lease receivables  50 526  48 674 

Detai ls of f inance lease receivables

Gross investment in leases  94 719  87 285 

- within one year  35 935  31 562 

- in second to f i f th year  58 784  55 723 

Unearned f inance income  (16 666)  (14 272)

Present value of minimum lease payments  78 053  73 013 

- within one year  27 527  24 339 

- in second to f i f th year  50 526  48 674 

Less: current port ion**  (27 527)  (24 339)

 50 526  48 674 

Finance lease receivables relates mainly to the 

groups clothing, text i les and  toys (2014: R50,1 

mi l l ion; 2013: R47,5 mi l l ion) interests. The 

f inance lease arrangement is for copiers, faxes 

and point-of-sale equipment.

Interest is charged at rates vary ing between 

14% and 25%. There were no cont ingent rents 

recognised as income during the year.

Fair value of f inance lease receivables

The carry ing value approximates fa ir value as 

market related rates have been appl ied to discount 

the receivable.

Encumbrances

Certain f inance lease receivables have been ceded 

as security for loans due. This has been classi f ied 

under long term receivables in the note 22.

** Included in trade and other receivables
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

13. NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES

Prepayments  -    1 009  -    -   

Loan to HCI Employee Share Trust (2001)  -    -    78 268  124 047 

Letter of credit  -    11 963  -    -   

Other loans#  149 356  31 682  -    -   

These loans are due within 1 to 6 years and bear 

interest at rates ranging form 0% to 5% per annum.

Less: Current port ion  (3 517)  (394)  -    -   

 145 839  44 260  78 268  124 047 

Fair value of long-term loans and receivables

The fa ir value of long-term interest bearing 

receivables approximates the carry ing value as 

market related rates of interest are charged 

on these outstanding amounts. There were no 

impairment provis ions on non-current receivable 

f inancia l  assets during the current or pr ior years.

Non-current receivables are denominated in the 

fo l lowing currencies:

South Afr ican Rand  145 839  30 946  78 268  124 047 

United States Dol lar  -    13 314  -    -   

 145 839  44 260  78 268  124 047 

Included in other loans are the loan to SACTWU 

relating to the sale of plant, equipment and inventory 

from discontinued operations. Refer to note 18.2.

Encumbrances

Certain non-current receivables have been ceded 

as security for loans due. Refer note 22.
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

14. INVENTORIES

Raw materia ls 1 142 840  953 523 

Work in progress  108 730  149 999 

Fin ished goods  356 724  577 744 

Consumables and spares  36 241  42 342 

Coal  11 313  4 368 

Provis ion for obsolete inventory  (11 579)  (6 515)

 1 644 269  1 721 461 

Inventories stated at net realisable value - R125 million  

(2013: R128 mi l l ion).

Encumbrances

Certain inventories have been ceded as security 

for loans due. Refer to note 22.

15. PROGRAMME RIGHTS

Televis ion programmes

-Internat ional  253 082  241 782 

-Local  39 644  14 193 

 292 726  255 975 

Reconci l iat ion of carry ing value

At beginning of year  255 975  198 340 

Addit ions  338 954  318 888 

Currency translat ion  1 385  -   

Amort ised through other operat ing expenses  (303 588)  (261 253)

At end of year  292 726  255 975 
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables 1 272 427  1 065 277  -    -   

Other receivables   518 003   693 159    352  -   

Al lowance for impairment of trade receivables (28 990)  (29 419)  -    -   

1 761 440  1 729 017    352  -   

Fair value of trade receivables

Trade and other receivables  1 761 440  1 729 017    352  -   

The carry ing value approximates fa ir value 

because of the short period to maturity of these 

instruments.

Trade receivables neither past due nor impaired

The credit qual i ty of trade and other receivables 

that are neither past due nor impaired is 

assessed on an ongoing basis for indiv idual 

debtors and based on repayment history. No 

indiv idual customer represents more than 10% of 

the group's trade receivables.

Col lateral

The group holds no col lateral  over the trade 

receivables which can be sold or repledged to a 

third party.

Trade receivables past due but not impaired

At 31 March 2014, trade receivables of R73,6 

mi l l ion (2013: R61,9 mi l l ion) were past due but 

not impaired. These relate mainly to a number of 

customers for whom there is no recent history 

of default.  The aging analysis of these trade 

receivables is as fo l lows:

30 to 60 days   50 802   22 598 

60 to 90 days   3 232   13 041 

More than 90 days   19 572   26 305 

None of the financial assets that are fully performing 

have been renegotiated in the last year.
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (cont inued)

Impairment of trade receivables

At 31 March 2014, trade receivables of R29 mil l ion 

(2013: R29 mil l ion) were impaired. Impaired trade 

receivables relate to debtors that have been 

handed over to attorneys for col lection and debtors 

that have been outstanding for more than one year. 

Movements on the al lowance for impairment of 
trade receivables is as fo l lows:

At beginning of year   29 419   31 480 

Business combinat ions -   8 318 

Provis ion for receivables impairment 9 356   26 291 

Receivables written off during the year as uncollect ib le (3 763)  (14 638)

Unused amounts reversed (6 022)  (22 032)

At end of year   28 990   29 419 

Other receivables past due but not impaired

At 31 March 2014, other receivables of R ni l 

(2013: R ni l )  were past due but not impaired.

Impairment of other receivables

At 31 March 2014, other receivables of R ni l 

(2013: R ni l )  were impaired.
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (cont inued)

For both trade and other receivables the creat ion 

and release of a l lowance for impaired receivables 

have been included in other operat ing expenses 

and income in the income statement. Amounts 

charged to the provis ion account are written of f 

when there is no expectat ion of recovery.

The maximum exposure to credit r isk at the 

report ing date is the fa ir value of each class of 

receivable as shown above.

Encumbrances

Detai ls of assets that serve as security for 

borrowings are presented in note 22.

17. PLEDGED DEPOSITS

Bank deposits of R2 mi l l ion (2013 : R2 mi l l ion) 

have been pledged to support guarantees of 

R2 mi l l ion (2013 : R2 mi l l ion) issued by the 

company's bankers in favour of a certain South 

Afr ican provincia l  gaming board for the due and 

punctual fu l f i lment of the l icence obl igat ions 

under which certain group subsidiar ies operates.
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

18. DISPOSAL GROUP ASSETS/LIABILITIES AS HELD 

FOR SALE

Disposal group assets classi f ied as held for sale  1 006 446   2 543 

Liabi l i t ies associated with  the disposal group 

assets held for sale  (118 798)  (1 690)

  887 648    853 

18.1 During the year ended 31 March 2014 a decision 

was made by the company's board of directors to 

distribute the group's interest in Johnnic Holdings 

USA LLC to its shareholders, subject to the receipt 

of the necessary regulatory approvals.

Assets and l iabi l i t ies associated with Johnnic 
Hold ings USA LLC c lass i f ied as he ld for 
d istr ibut ion included in Natural  Gas

Property, p lant and equipment   473 123  -   

Intangible assets   307 931  -   

Non-current receivables   17 864  -   

Inventories   7 713  -   

Other f inancia l  assets   3 253  -   

Trade and other receivables   42 104  -   

Cash and cash equivalents   92 614  -   

Provis ions  (71 158)  -   

Trade and other payables  (47 573)  -   

  825 871  -   

Refer to note 36.1 for detai ls of operat ions 

related to the above assets and l iabi l i t ies that 

have been classi f ied as discont inued.

18.2 The directors of Seardel have resolved to exit 

Seardel’s apparel manufacturing businesses through 

the closure of its Western Cape and KwaZulu-Natal 

operations and the disposal of the remainder of 

its apparel manufacturing businesses to SACTWU, 

details of which are set out in the circular to 

Seardel Shareholders dated 18 December 2013 

(“Circular”). Further to this strategy Seardel has 

concluded an agreement with SACTWU for the sale 

of a property situated at the corner of Bofors Circle 

and Losack Avenue, Epping Industria, Cape Town, of 

which the apparel manufacutring businesses is the 

primary tenant of the property for a total purchase 

consideration of R52.2 mill ion.
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

DISPOSAL GROUP ASSETS/LIABILITIES AS HELD 

FOR SALE (cont inued)

Curtai lment of certain operat ions has rendered 

these assets surplus to requirements and they 

wi l l  be real ised to best advantage.  To this end 

land and bui ld ings valued at R55.7 mi l l ion is 

current ly in the process of being sold.

Assets associated with  the Seardel group classified 
as held for sale included in Clothing, textiles and toys

Property   53 985   2 295 

Plant and machinery    551  -   

  54 536   2 295 

Refer to note 36.2 for detai ls of operat ions related 

to the above assets that have been classi f ied as 

discont inued.

18.3 Following the closure of the pulley division of Formex 

Industries the remaining assets which are in the 

process of being disposed of have been reflected as 

non-current assets/disposal group assets held for sale:

Assets associated with  the pul ley div is ion of the 
Formex group classi f ied as held for sale included 
in Vehic le Component Manufacture

Property   7 308  -   

Plant and equipment  -      248 

Liabi l i t ies associated with  the pul ley div is ion of 

the Formex group classi f ied as held for sale  (67)  (1 690)

Net assets ( l iabi l i t ies) of the pul ley div is ion of the 

Formex group classi f ied as held for sale
 7 241  (1 442)

Refer to note 36.3 for detai ls of operat ions 

related to the above assets and l iabi l i t ies that 

have been classi f ied as discont inued.
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       Number of shares

2014 2013 2014 2013

 '000  '000  R'000  R'000 

19. ORDINARY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

Ordinary shares of 25 cents each  450 000  450 000  112 500  112 500 

Issued

In issue in company  119 869  128 944  29 967  32 236 

Acquired and pending cancel lat ion  (1 360)  (1 888)  (340)  (472)

In issue in company  118 509  127 056  29 627  31 764 

Treasury shares held by subsidiary  and employee 

share trust  (12 333)  (3 832)  (3 083)  (957)

 106 176  123 224  26 544  30 807 

Detai ls of the issued share capital  and share 

premium and changes during the current and prior 

year are as fo l lows:

 Number of  Share Share

 shares  capital  premium 

 '000  R'000  R'000 

In issue at 31 March 2012  131 976  32 994  978 341 

Shares repurchased  (4 920)  (1 230)  (114 103)

Treasury shares held by subsidiary and employee 

share trust  (3 832)  (957)  (197 940)

In issue at 31 March 2013  123 224  30 807  666 298 

In issue at 31 March 2013  127 056  31 764  864 238 

Shares repurchased  (8 547)  (2 137)  (764 398)

Treasury shares held by subsidiary and employee 

share trust  (12 333)  (3 083)  (99 840)

In issue at 31 March 2014  106 176  26 544  -

Details of options over shares are set out in note 39.

The unissued shares are under the control  of  the 

directors unt i l  the next annual general  meeting.
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Share 

based 

paymentsFCTR Hedging Revaluation Other Total

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

20. OTHER RESERVES

Group 2014

At beginning of year  396 548  61 709  (18 323)  1 779   462  442 175 

Exchange differences on of translation  

  foreign subsidiaries  194 574  -    -    -    -    194 574 

Equity-settled share based payments  -    16 170  -    -    -    16 170 

Fair value gains  -    38 032 37    -   38 069 

Changes in holding  (3 078)  -    -    -    -    (3 078) 

Tax relat ing to other  

  comprehensive income -  -    -    -    -    -   

At end of year  588 044  77 879  19 709  1 816   462  687 910 

Group 2013

At beginning of year  113 404  44 476  (8 373)  7 494   462  157 463 

Exchange differences on of translation  

  foreign subsidiaries  279 115  -    -    -    -    279 115 

Equity-settled share based payments  -    17 233  -    -    -    17 233 

Fair value losses  -    -    (9 950)  -    -    (9 950)

Changes in holding  4 029  -    -    (  333)  -    3 696 

Current revaluat ions  -    -    -    (6 612)  -    (6 612)

Tax relat ing to other  

  comprehensive income  -    -    -    1 230  -    1 230 

At end of year  396 548  61 709  (18 323)  1 779   462  442 175 
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

21. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financia l  l iabi l i t ies carr ied at fa ir value through 
prof it  or loss

Foreign exchange contracts  27 494  15 164 

Current port ion  27 494  15 164 

Non-current port ion  -    -   

 27 494  15 164 

Fair value of derivat ive f inancia l  instruments 
carr ied at fa ir value through prof it  or loss

The fa ir value of derivat ives was based upon market 

valuat ions. The net market value of a l l  foreign 

exchange contracts at year end was calculated 

by comparing the foreign exchange contracted 

rates to the equivalent year end market foreign 

exchange rates.

22. BORROWINGS

Bank borrowings  1 198 629  1 579 190 

Other borrowings  2 471 840   351 961 

Redeemable preference shares   934 451   392 985 

 4 604 920  2 324 136

Current port ion of borrowings  (1 687 231)  (1 019 915)

 2 917 689  1 304 221 

Secured  4 432 878  2 009 195 

Unsecured   172 042   314 941 

 4 604 920  2 324 136 

The fo l lowing represents the book value of the 

security for these borrowings:

Property, p lant and equipment  1 579 631  1 601 767 

Investment propert ies  1 445 525   525 229 

Inventory   522 376   627 768 

Intangible assets   9 197   13 030 

Other assets   210 797   448 580 

Long term receivables   126 747   47 544 

Trade receivables   519 515   504 788 

Non-current assets held for sale   54 536   2 295 

 4 468 324  3 771 001 

The above securit ies are inclusive of securit ies 

pledged for bank overdrafts. Refer to note 26.
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

BORROWINGS (cont inued)

Fixed rates   104 637   281 418 

Float ing rates  4 500 283  2 042 718 

 4 604 920  2 324 136 

Maturity of these borrowings is as fo l lows:

Due within 1 year  1 687 231  1 019 915 

Due within 2 - 5 years  2 180 550   922 659 

Due after 5 years   737 139   381 562 

 4 604 920  2 324 136 

Analysis by currency

Austral ian Dol lar   52 456  -   

South Afr ican Rand  4 453 023  2 020 244 

United States Dol lar   99 441   303 892

 4 604 920  2 324 136 

 %  % 

Weighted average ef fect ive interest rates  7,10  7,15 

At 31 March 2014, the carry ing value of 

borrowings approximates their fa ir value as 

market related rates have been appl ied to discount 

the instruments.

23. RETIREMENT BENEFIT INFORMATION

Medical  a id

Non-current post retirement benefit l iabil ities 154 942 150 282

Current portion of post retirement benefit liabilities** 6 280 5 045

161 222 155 327

A subsidiary pays a monthly grant to the Golden 

Arrow Employees'  Medical  Benef it  Fund ("MBF" 

or "the Fund").  The Fund uses the grant to 

cover the outgoings not f inanced from member 

contr ibut ions. The administrators of MBF are the 

Metropol itan Health Group. The subsidiary also 

makes contr ibut ions to Discovery Health.

** Included in trade and other payables

23.1

23.1.1
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

POST RETIREMENT BENEFIT (cont inued)

Movements in the l iabi l i ty recognised in the 

statement of f inancia l  posit ion are as fo l lows:

Balance at beginning of year  65 894  58 899 

Net expense recognised in the income statement  (2 132)  6 995 

 63 762  65 894 

Less: Current port ion  -    -   

Balance at end of year  63 762  65 894 

The calculat ion of accrued service l iabi l i ty in 

respect of post-ret irement healthcare was 

performed by Towers Watson Actuaries and 

Consultants as at 31 March 2014.

The amounts recognised in the income statement 

are as fo l lows:

Current serv ice cost  4 069  3 803 

Interest cost  5 698  5 223 

Net actuaria l  (gain) loss  (9 285)   472 

Pensioner subsidy  (2 614)  (2 503)

Total  included in employee costs  (2 132)  6 995 

 %  % 

The principal  actuaria l  assumptions used for the 

valuat ion were:

Discount rate  9.50  8.30 

Medical  a id subsidy increase rate  7.20  6.90 

Normal ret irement age  65 years  65 years 

Continuat ion of membership at ret irement  55.00  55.00 

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

As at 31 March

Present value of obl igat ions  63 762  65 894  58 899  48 504  44 937 

Contr ibut ions of R33 mi l l ion (2013: R23 mi l l ion) 

are expected to be paid into the Group's def ined 

benef it  scheme during the annual period after 31 

March 2014.
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

POST RETIREMENT BENEFIT (cont inued)

As at 31 March, the effects of a 1%  movement in the 

discount rate and the subsidy rate would change the 

post-retirement medical aid liability to the following:

Upward movement

Discount rate increased by 1%  52 191  53 069 

Subsidy increase rate increased by 1%  73 127  76 265 

Downward movement

Discount rate reduced by 1%  67 619  70 169 

Subsidy increase rate decreased by 1%  56 056  57 448 

A subsidiary of the group subsidises certain 

past employees, who participate in the National 

Independent Medical Aid Society ("NIMAS") and who 

joined before 1 July 1996. These past employees 

are el igible for a 50% retirement subsidy of the 

total medical scheme contributions. 

Movements in the liability recognised in the statement 

of financial position are as follows:

Opening balance  89 433  79 307 

Net expense recognised in the income statement  8 098  7 005 

Contr ibut ions  (6 036)  (4 841)

Actuaria l  losses  5 965  7 962 

 97 460  89 433 
Less: Current port ion**  (6 280)  (5 045)

Balance at end of year  91 180  84 388 

** Included in trade and other payables

The amounts recognised in the income statement 

are as fo l lows:

Current serv ice cost   444   482 

Interest on obl igat ion  7 654  6 523 

 8 098  7 005 

 %  % 
The principal  actuaria l  assumptions used for the 

valuat ion were:

Discount rate  8.70  7.90 

Medical  a id subsidy increase rate  8.40  8.00 

Normal ret irement age  65 years  65 years 

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

As at 31 March

Present value of obl igat ions  97 460  89 433  79 307  71 233  69 725 

Experience adjustments on plan l iabi l i t ies  (5 965)  (7 962)  (5 792)  571  1 757 

23.1.2
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

POST RETIREMENT BENEFIT (cont inued)

There is no surplus or def ic it  in the plan as there 

are no plan assets.

Contr ibut ions of R6,5 mi l l ion are expected to 

be paid into the Group's def ined benef it  scheme 

during the annual period after 31 March 2014 

(2013: R5,2 mi l l ion).

As at 31 March, the effects of a 1% movement in 

the assumed medical cost trend rate would change 

the current service cost and interest cost, and the 

post-retirement medical aid liabil ity to the subsidy

Upward movement

Effect on the current service cost and interest cost  9 157  8 035 

Effect on the post-ret irement medical  a id l iabi l i ty  108 488  100 863 

Downward movement

Effect on the current service cost and interest cost  7 210  6 153 

Effect on the post-ret irement medical  a id l iabi l i ty  88 157  79 906 

24. PROVISIONS

Rehabi l i tat ion l iabi l i ty

Balance at beginning of year  100 684  83 978 

Transfer to disposal group l iabi l i t ies held for sale  (69 039)  -   

Raised during the year  8 526  9 509 

Uti l ised  -    (453)

Other  2 081  -   

Exchange di f ferences  11 647  7 650 

Balance at end of year  53 899  100 684 

Leave pay

Balance at beginning of year  30 023  27 802 

Transfers  (1 759)  -   

Raised during the year  17 100  9 917 

Unused amounts reversed  -    (16)

Other   202   239 

Uti l ised  (11 937)  (7 919)

Balance at end of year  33 629  30 023 

Staff  bonuses

Balance at beginning of year  21 001  21 319 

Transfers  (4 238)  -   

Other   451   526 

Raised during the year  21 702  25 908 

Uti l ised  (18 540)  (26 752)

Balance at end of year  20 376  21 001 
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

PROVISIONS (cont inued)

Repurchase of serv ice

Balance at beginning of year  41 576  41 576 

Restructuring

Balance at beginning of year  5 105  13 615 

Raised during the year  23 116  8 463 

Unused amounts reversed  (6)  (340)

Uti l ised  (5 099)  (16 633)

Balance at end of year  23 116  5 105 

Third party c la ims

Balance at beginning of year  13 326  12 014 

Raised during the year  5 122  7 265 

Uti l ised  (5 446)  (5 953)

Balance at end of year  13 002  13 326 

Provis ion in respect of guarantees given

Balance at beginning of year  20 000  20 000 

Unused amounts reversed  (20 000)  -   

Balance at end of year  -    20 000 

Other

Balance at beginning of year  9 335  8 412 

Raised during the year  7 327  20 982 

Unused amounts reversed  (478)  (243)

Uti l ised  (6 299)  (19 816)

Balance at end of year  9 885  9 335 

Total  provis ions  195 483  241 050 

Non-current  54 319  100 684 

Current  141 164  140 366 

 195 483  241 050 
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PROVISIONS (cont inued)

Rehabi l i tat ion l iabi l i ty

Rehabilitation obligations are based on the Group’s environmental 

plans, in compliance with current regulatory requirements. Provision 

is made based on the net present value of the rehabilitation  of landfill 

gas and coal mining sites.

Leave pay

This provision is raised in respect of accumulated annual leave days 

accrued to employees as the group has a present legal obl igation as 

a result of past service provided by the employee. The timing of the 

settlement is uncertain given the nature of the provision. 

Staf f  bonuses

This provision is recognised when the group has a present legal or 

constructive obl igation as a result of past service provided by the 

employee. The timing and extent of claims settled remain uncertain 

unti l  settlement occurs.

Repurchase of serv ice

This is a provision raised in respect of costs that will be payable to 

employees on completion of the restructuring of the bus industry by the 

Department of Transport. This process is ongoing at year end.

Restructuring

These provisions relate to management's restructuring plans already 

implemented and/or communicated before 31 March 2014. It is anticipated 

that the costs associated with restructuring and retrenchments will occur 

within the next 12 months. The uncertainties surrounding the provisions 

relate to the exact costs of restructuring and which employees will be 

retrenched and which will be reassigned.

Third party c la ims

Third party claims are legal claims resulting from traffic accidents. 

Claims that are insured are excluded from this provision. The timing 

and extent of claims settled remain uncertain until settlement occurs.

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables  1 003 064  977 846  -    -   

Operat ing lease l iabi l i t ies  1 599  2 038  -    -   

Other payables   759 339   625 744   1 969   2 005 

 1 764 002  1 605 628   1 969   2 005 

Fair value of trade and other payables

The carrying value approximates fair value because of 

the short period to settlement of these obligations.

Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

26. BANK OVERDRAFTS

26.1 Trade receivables totalling R40 million (2013: R40 

million) have been ceded as security for debtors' 

factoring facilities. The balance of the facility at year 

end was R33,9 million (2013: R21,3 million).

26.2 A subsidiary, Seardel Investment Corporation Limited, 

has secured its debt facilities, including overdraft 

facilities, by providing general, special and mortgage 

bonds over assets of the group to a special 

purpose vehicle, which has in turn guaranteed the 

obl igations of Seardel group companies in favour of 

the Seardel group lenders.

The following assets are subject to the above bonds:

Property, p lant and equipment  610 529  754 481 

Investment property  669 619  525 229 

Intangible assets  9 197  13 030 

Other assets  3 644  3 580 

Non-current receivables  126 747  47 544 

Inventories  522 376  627 768 

Trade & other receivables  519 515  504 788 

Non-current assets held for sale  54 536  2 295 

26.3Overdrafts of a subsidiary of R537,7 mil l ion (2013: 

R504,6 mil l ion) are secured over assets as part of 

its general borrowings. Refer note 22. 

Fair value of bank overdrafts

The carry ing value of bank overdrafts approximates 

fa ir value due to the short-term maturity of these 

instruments.

27. GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Receivable balance for government grants 

brought forward  39 456  67 256 

Total income from government grants, included in 

other operating expenses and income, recognised 

during the year amounted to  33 875  67 260 

Total  cash received during the year from 

government grants amounted to  (39 456)  (95 060)

Amount outstanding as at year-end  33 875  39 456 

The government grants received related to the 

Product ion Incent ive Scheme establ ished by the 

Department of Trade and Industry.

There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies 

relating to the government assistance recognised.
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

28. COMMITMENTS

Operat ing lease arrangements where the Group 
is a lessee:

Future leasing charges:

- Payable within one year   69 287   54 295 

- Payable within two to f ive years   165 174   74 165 

- Payable after f ive years   32 965   7 421 

  267 426   135 881 

Operat ing lease arrangements where the Group 
is a lessor:

Future leasing charges for premises:

Receivable within one year   176 526   82 645 

Receivable within two to f ive years   749 116   264 889 

Receivable after f ive years   494 563   4 266 

 1 420 205   351 800 

Capital  expenditure

Authorised by directors but not yet contracted for:

-  Investment property   203 900  -   

-  Property, p lant and equipment   657 734   291 886 

  861 634   291 886 

Authorised by directors and contracted to be expended:

- Investment property   256 955   20 265 

- Property, p lant and equipment   414 004   116 057 

- Intangible assets   11 000   1 356 

  681 959   137 678 

It is intended that this expenditure wi l l  be funded 

from bank f inance and operat ing cash f lows.
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

29. REVENUE

Sale of goods  4 276 621 3 013 545 

Provis ion of serv ices  4 106 284  3 663 556 

 8 382 905  6 677 101 

30. INVESTMENT INCOME

Dividends

Listed investments  1 559  8 168  -    -   

Associates  -    -    594  -   

Subsidiar ies  -    -    1 595 642  512 118 

 1 559  8 168  1 596 236  512 118 

Interest

Bank  47 072  42 965   140   138 

Other   175  2 026  77 341  9 097 

 47 247 44 991  77 481  9 235 

48 806 53 159 1 673 717 521 353

31. INVESTMENT SURPLUS (DEFICIT)

Gain on sale of associate  -    25 954  -    40 084 

Gain ( loss) on sale of other investments  -    9 462  -    (299 826)

Gain ( loss) on disposal of  subsidiar ies  -    -    14 472 670  (6 760)

 -    35 416  14 472 670  (266 502)

32. IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL AND INVESTMENTS

Impairment of goodwi l l   329  1 084  -    -   

Impairment of investments in subsidiar ies  -    -     311   478 

  329  1 084   311   478 

33. FINANCE COSTS

Interest  164 607  115 429  5 642  1 560 

Preference div idends  84 014  35 370  -    -   

 248 621  150 799  5 642  1 560 
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

34. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

The fo l lowing items have been included in arr iv ing 

at prof it  before taxat ion: 

Auditors remunerat ion

- Audit fees - current year  18 507  15 240  1 059  1 534 

                -  pr ior year   263   125  -    -   

-  Other serv ices   228   81   134  -   

Consultancy fees  60 465  30 957  -     20 

Foreign exchange loss/(gain)  40 489  (10 781)  -    -   

Gaming lev ies  103 496  88 924  -    -   

Government grant income  (33 875)  (67 260)  -    -   

Inventory recognised as expense   50 103   96 316  -    -   

Operat ing lease charges

- Premises  78 211  73 197  -    -   

-  Plant and equipment  34 281  9 005  -    -   

Pension fund contr ibut ions  86 234  75 690  -    -   

Loss (Profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment  23 556  (16 846)  -    -   

Prof it  on disposal of  intangibles  -    (22 550)  -    -   

Research and development  9 518  10 247  -    -   

Secretaria l  fees   32   318  -    -   

Share based payments  16 170  17 233  16 170  17 233 

Staff  costs  1 909 144  1 641 844  -    -   

VAT on net gaming win  61 328  53 594  -    -   

35. TAXATION

South Afr ican taxes

Current normal tax  313 588  300 328  1 435   38 

Prior year normal tax  5 922  (20 526)  -    (21 044)

Deferred normal tax  (14 799)  13 251  -    -   

Capital  gains tax  1 466   615  -    -   

Securit ies transfer tax  -     858  -     858 

Withholding tax   82  -    -    -   

 306 259  294 526  1 435  (20 148)

Various subsidiaries have incurred operating losses 

which result in losses for tax purposes.  Deferred 

tax assets have not been raised unless it is probable 

that future taxable profits will be available against 

which the unused tax losses can be util ised.

* Restated. Refer to note 48.
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

TAXATION (cont inued)

Losses for tax purposes available for set off against 

future taxable income and which deferred tax assets 

have not been raised are estimated at:

-  Normal tax  639 424  747 018 

- Secondary tax on companies  294 065  464 174 

Tax rel ief  at current rates:

- Normal tax  179 039  209 165 

- Secondary tax on companies  44 110  69 626 

Reconci l iat ion of tax rate  %  % 

Normal tax rate    28    28 

Deferred tax not raised on losses    3    3 

Utilisation of deferred tax assets not previously raised  (1)  (1)

Capital  losses and non-deduct ib le expenses    1    2 

Non-taxable income including share of associates income  (12)  (17)

Prior year charges    1  (1)

Dif ferent ia l  tax rates - CGT and foreign  (1)  -   

Ef fect ive rate    19    14 

The income tax relating to each component of other 

comprehensive income is set out below:

Revaluat ions -  1 230 

36. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Losses for the year from discont inued operat ions (214 141) (109 978)

36.1During the year ended 31 March 2014 a decision 

was made by the company’s board of directors to 

distribute the group’s interest in Johnnic Holdings 

USA LLC to its shareholders, subject to the receipt 

of the necessary regulatory approvals. The results 

of these operations have therefore been classified 

as discontinued operations for the group.
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Group Company

2014 2013* 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (cont inued)

Loss from d iscont inued operat ions re lat ing to 
Johnn ic  Hold ings USA LLC

Revenue   336 258 237 298

Operating and other costs  (381 212) (289 258)

Net finance costs  (9 255) (10 767)

Loss before taxation  (54 209) (62 727)

Taxation  -   -

 (54 209) (62 727)

Cash flows from discontinued operations

Cash flows from operating activities   112 488 21 517

Cash flows from investing activities  (101 747) 12 240

Cash flows from financing activities   2 399 (2 969)

  13 140 30 788

36.2The directors of Seardel have resolved to exit 

Seardel ’s apparel manufacturing businesses through 

the closure of its Western Cape and KwaZulu-Natal 

operations and the disposal of the remainder of its 

apparel manufacturing businesses to SACTWU.

Loss from discontinued operations relating to Apparel 
Manufacturing Business

Revenue   604 457   667 962 

Operating and other costs  (671 116)  (695 666)

Impairment of assets  (4 617)  -   

Restructuring and retrenchment costs  (43 617)  (1 063)

Loss on sale of plant, equipment and inventory  (31 260)  -   

Net finance costs  (13 748)  (16 406)

Loss before taxation  (159 901)  (45 173)

Taxation  -    -   

 (159 901)  (45 173)

Cash flows from discontinued operations

Cash flows from operating activities  (41 305)  (18 356)

Cash flows from investing activities   7 061  (2 751)

Cash flows from financing activities  -    -   

 (34 244)  (21 107)

Refer to note 18.2 for details of assets and l iabil it ies 

relating to the above discontinued operation that 

have been classif ied as held for sale. 

Refer to note 18.1 for details of assets and l iabil it ies 

relating to the above discontinued operation that 

have been classif ied as held for sale. 
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (cont inued)

36.3Loss for the year relating to the discontinued door 

module and pulley divisions of Formex Industries 

Proprietary Limited

Revenue  -    -   

Operating costs  (31)  (378)

Impairment of assets  -    (1 700)

Loss before tax  (31)  (2 078)

Taxation  -    -   

 (31)  (2 078)

Cash flows from discontinued operations

Cash flows from operating activities  -    -   

Cash flows from investing activities  -    -   

Cash flows from financing activities  (1 375)  (4 083)

 (1 375)  (4 083)

Refer to note 18.3 for details of assets and liabilities 

relating to the above discontinued operation that have 

been classified as held for sale. 

37. EARNINGS AND DIVIDENDS PER SHARE

37.1 Earnings per share as presented on the income statement  

is based on the weighted average number of 114 788 226 

ordinary shares in issue (2013 : 126 145 880).

37.2 Diluted earnings per share is based on the weighted 

average number of 116 710 004 ordinary shares in 

issue (2013: 128 848 540).

Reconciliation of weighted average number of shares:

Used in calculation of earnings per share  114 788 226  126 145 880 

Options outstanding in employee share scheme  1 921 778  2 702 660 

Used in calculation of diluted earnings per share  116 710 004  128 848 540 

37.3 Headline earnings per share (cents) *  946,23  860,06 

-Continuing operations  1 083.74  956.99 

-Discontinued operations  (137.51)  (96.93)

Diluted headline earnings per share (cents) *  930.64  842.02 

-Continuing operations  1 065.88  936.91 

-Discontinued operations  (135.24)  (94.89)

* Restated
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2014 2013*

Gross Net Gross Net

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

EARNINGS AND DIVIDENDS PER SHARE (continued)

Earnings attributable to equity holders of the parent  1 060 455  1 381 466 

IAS 16 loss (profit) on disposal of plant and equipment   23 556   17 695  (16 846)  (14 688)

IAS 16 impairment of p lant and equipment   6 563   2 265   15 134   8 344 

IAS 38 impairment of intangible assets   4 617   3 396  -    -   

IAS 36 impairment of goodwi l l    329    172   1 084    922 

IFRS 3 gain on bargain purchase  -    -    (476 901)  (255 194)

IAS 28 gain on disposal of  associates  -    -    (25 954)  (25 954)

IAS 36 impairment of assets   5 925   4 823   43 024   29 059 

IAS 36 reversal of  impairments  (509)  (203)  (22 822)  (17 361)

IAS 38 losses on disposal of  intangible assets    107    43  -    -   

IAS 40 fair value adjustment to investment property  (23 284)  (17 418)  (427)  (463)

Other remeasurements and gains #  -    -    (32 012)  (30 050)

Re- measurements included in equity-accounted 

earnings of associates 

  31 101   14 926   8 886   8 851 

Headline earnings attributable to equity holders of the parent  1 086 154  1 084 932 

# Gross amount for 2013 includes profit on disposal 

of intangible assets of R22,6 mill ion and profit on 

disposal of financial investments of R9,5 mill ion.

* Restated
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

38. NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH GENERATED/(UTILISED) BY OPERATIONS

Prof it  after taxat ion  1 265 697  1 603 264  16 152 823   282 173 

Taxat ion   306 259   294 759   1 435  (20 148)

Depreciat ion and amort isat ion   593 473   412 906  -    -   

Share based payments   16 170   17 233  -    -   

Gain on bargain purchase  -    (264 422)  -    -   

Loss (profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment   23 555  (16 846)  -    -   

Prof it  on disposal of  intangibles  -    (22 550)  -    -   

Impairment of goodwill and investments   6 255   44 108    311  (21 718)

Other impairments   21 852   15 134  -    -   

Impairment reversals  (509)  -    (23 495) -

Equity accounted profits retained in subsidiaries  (748 228)  (691 799)  -    -   

Forex translation  (11 648)   15 414  (4 947)  -   

Fair value adjustments  (44 293)  (11 261)  -    -   

Investment income  (48 806)  (45 113)  (1 673 717)  (521 353)

Preference div idends and interest   257 894   178 094   5 642   1 560 

Investment surplus  -    (35 416)  (14 472 670)   266 502

Movement in provis ions   12 217  (571)  -    -   

Post ret irement medical  a id benef its   11 829   7 897  -    -   

Operat ing lease equal isat ion asset  (6 710)  (2 573)  -    -   

Other non cash items  (17 642)   26 116    3  -   

 1 637 365  1 524 374  (14 615)  (12 984)

CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL

Inventory   61 608  (132 103)  -    -   

Programming r ights  (35 367)  (55 696)  -    -   

Trade and other receivables  (18 441)   111 115  (352)   3 951 

Trade and other payables   179 330   275 966  (36)  (87 487)

  187 130   199 282  (388)  (83 536)

TAXATION PAID

Unpaid at beginning of year   16 012  (46 844)  (8)  (21 360)

Charged to the income statement  (323 530)  (282 072)  (1 435)   20 148 

Claim settlement  -    (13 172)  -    -   

Business combinations    445  -    -    -   

Foreign exchange difference  (85)    967  -    -   

Unpaid at end of year  (609)  (16 012)    20    8 

 (307 767)  (357 133)  (1 423)  (1 204)

38.1

38.2

38.3
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Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

ACQUISITIONS

Property, p lant and equipment #  (12 657)  (657 320)

Intangible assets #  (2 167)  (158 174)

Deferred tax asset  (517)  -   

Taxat ion receivable  (445)  -   

Investment in jo int venture  -    (15 297)

Other non-current assets  (93)  (8 707)

Trade and other receivables #  (22 634)  (243 388)

Inventory #  (8 418)  (817 551)

Cash and cash equivalents  (5 078)  (102 378)

Other current assets  -    (31 561)

Deferred tax l iabi l i ty #   1 848   114 760 

Other non-current l iabi l i t ies   6 716    609 

Other current l iabi l i t ies   16 184   166 343 

 (27 262)  (1 752 664)

Non-control l ing interest #   4 600   794 078 

Interest already owned   3 359   291 361 

Gain on bargain purchase #    252   476 901 

Goodwi l l  Restated  (16 628)  (65 337)

Shares issued   12 678   71 499 

Cash and cash equivalents at date of acquisit ion   5 078   102 378 

Net cash outf low  (17 922)  (81 784)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and deposits  1 188 680   986 501   2 337   5 747 

Bank overdraft and loans  (706 908)  (674 739)  (135 205)  (148 728)

Cash in disposal group assets held for sale (refer note 18.1) 92 614 - - -

  574 386   311 762  (132 868)  (142 981)

Fair value of cash and cash equivalents

The carry ing value of cash and cash equivalents 

approximates fa ir value due to the short-term 

maturity of these instruments.

38.4

38.5

#  Restated
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39. HCI EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Group operates a share opt ion scheme, The HCI 

Employee Share Scheme, in terms of which  shares 

in the Group are of fered on a share opt ion basis to 

part ic ipants, provided they remain in the Group's 

employ unt i l  the opt ions vest. Any gain real ised on 

the exercise of these opt ions is sett led on a net 

equity basis, whereby the part ic ipant receives that 

number of shares that equates in value to the gain 

made on exercise date.

Options must be exercised within three months of the 

vesting date, where after the options lapse. Options 

vest over periods of three to five years.  These vesting 

periods may be varied by the board of directors. 

In terms of The HCI Employee Share Trust (2001), 

the previous option scheme, shares in the Group were 

offered either on a  share option or on a combined 

share option and deferred sale basis. Participants 

were able to exercise options to purchase shares 

in tranches within periods of three to seven years 

from the grant date at the exercise price, provided 

that they remained in the Group's employ unti l  the 

options vested. The terms of the previous option 

scheme remain applicable to al l  options issued in 

terms of that scheme and that have not yet been 

paid for or become unconditional.

Options issued in terms of the previous scheme must 

be exercised within three years of being granted, 

where after the options lapse. Options vest over 

periods of three to seven years.  These vesting 

periods may be varied by the trustees of the scheme. 

Participants are required to pay for the shares 

between five and ten years from the date of grant.
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HCI EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share opt ions granted to el ig ib le part ic ipants that 

have not yet become uncondit ional :

2014 2013

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted 

share  exercise price share  exercise price 

options average options average

 R  R 

Balance at beginning of the year  3 074 868  62.76  4 637 655  52.45 

Options granted   504 145  119.70   645 558  76.68 

Options uncondit ional  (699 479)  60.96  (1 946 675)  40.22 

Options forfe ited  (70 000)  58.24  (261 670)  37.80 

Balance at the end of the year  2 809 534  73.01  3 074 868  62.76 

The fa ir value of opt ions granted is measured 

using the Black Scholes Model.  Share opt ions 

granted in the current year were fa ir ly valued 

using a volat i l i ty indicator of 19% and 16% (2013: 

16%) and an annual interest rate of 5% and 5.5% 

(2013: 5%). The cost relat ing to these opt ions 

is recognised by al locat ing the fa ir value over the 

vest ing period on a straight- l ine basis.

The volume weighted average share pr ice during 

the current year was R130.68 (2013: R90.88).

The options issued in terms of The HCI Employee Share 

Trust (2001) and outstanding at 31 March 2014 

become unconditional between the following dates:

Number of

share Exercise

options  pr ice 

R

29 June 2012 and 28 June 2014   238 175  70.00 

4 June 2012 and 3 June 2014   7 500  37.80 

4 June 2014 and 3 June 2016   7 500  37.80 

17 June 2013 and 16 June 2014   8 948  71.52 

17 June 2014 and 16 June 2015   8 948  71.52 

  271 071 

Options vested but not yet paid for   264 027  40.50 

Options vested but not yet paid for   632 604  70.00 

Options vested but not yet paid for   15 000  37.80 

 1 182 702 
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HCI EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The options issued in terms of The HCI Employee 

Share Scheme and outstanding at 31 March 2014 

become unconditional between the fol lowing dates:

Number of

share Exercise

options  pr ice 

R

16 May and 16 August 2014   178 000  30.00 

15 March and 15 June 2015   455 053  72.32 

29 August and 29 November 2015   397 886  77.24 

28 August and 28 November 2016   379 638  118.06 

29 August and 29 November 2016   45 874  77.24 

19 March and 19 June 2017   39 696  125.02 

28 August and 28 November 2017   2 711  118.06 

29 August and 29 November 2017   45 874  77.24 

19 March and 19 June 2018   39 695  125.02 

28 August and 28 November 2018   2 710  118.06 

19 March and 19 June 2019   39 695  125.02 

 1 626 832 

Total  number of opt ions in issue  2 809 534 

A maximum number of 1 037 966 (2013: 751 975) 

shares may be issued in respect of 1 626 832 

(2013: 1 122 687) options issued in terms of The 

HCI Employee Share Scheme.

In addition to the options in issue at the reporting 

date, a further 8 873 168 (2013: 9 377 313) 

options may be issued in terms of The HCI Employee 

Share Scheme. 504 145 (2013: 645 558) options 

were issued in terms of this scheme during the year.
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2014 2013

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted 

share  exercise price share  exercise price 

options average options average

HCI EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Options granted to execut ive directors

JA Copelyn

Balance at the beginning of the year  727 622  72.10  1 052 103  56.40 

Options granted  103 607  118.06  136 471  77.24 

Options vested and shares del ivered  (145 565)  71.52  (460 952)  37.80 

Balance at the end of the year  685 664  79.17  727 622  72.10 

Uncondit ional  between the fo l lowing dates:

29 June 2008 and 28 June 2014  308 571  70.00  308 571  70.00 

17 June 2010 and 16 June 2013  -    71.52  145 565  71.52 

15 March and 15 June 2015  137 015  72.32  137 015  72.32 

29 August and 29 November 2015  136 471  77.24  136 471  77.24 

28 August and 28 November 2016  103 607  118.06  -   -

MJA Golding

Balance at the beginning of the year  727 622  72.10  1 052 103  56.40 

Options granted  103 607  118.06  136 471  77.24 

Options vested and shares del ivered  (145 565)  71.52  (460 952)  37.80 

Balance at the end of the year  685 664  79.17  727 622  72.10 

Uncondit ional  between the fo l lowing dates:

29 June 2008 and 28 June 2014  308 571  70.00  308 571  70.00 

17 June 2010 and 16 June 2013  -    71.52  145 565  71.52 

15 March and 15 June 2015  137 015  72.32  137 015  72.32 

29 August and 29 November 2015  136 471  77.24  136 471  77.24 

28 August and 28 November 2016  103 607  118.06  -   -

TG Govender 

Balance at the beginning of the year  191 616  71.32  361 629  54.87 

Options granted  69 646  118.06  6 354  77.24 

Options vested and shares del ivered  (55 695)  71.52  (176 367)  37.80 

Balance at the end of the year  205 567  87.10  191 616  71.32 

Uncondit ional  between the fo l lowing dates:

29 June 2008 and 28 June 2014  77 143  70.00  77 143  70.00 

17 June 2010 and 16 June 2013  -    71.52  55 695  71.52 

15 March and 15 June 2015  52 424  72.32  52 424  72.32 

29 August and 29 November 2015  6 354  77.24  6 354  77.24 

28 August and 28 November 2016  69 646  118.06  -   -
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2014 2013

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted 

share  exercise price share  exercise price 

options average options average

HCI EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Y Shaik

Balance at the beginning of the year  -    -    -   -

Options granted  119 086  125.02  -   -

Balance at the end of the year  119 086  125.02  -   -

Uncondit ional  between the fo l lowing dates:

19 March and 19 June 2017  39 696  125.02  -   -

19 March and 19 June 2018  39 695  125.02  -   -

19 March and 19 June 2019  39 695  125.02  -   -

The following loans were advanced in terms of The HCI 

Employee Share Trust (2001) in respect of the strike 

price of options issued in terms of that scheme. These 

loans are interest free and are repayable within three 

years of the options' vesting date. 

 R'000  R'000 

JA Copelyn  27 835  17 424 

Payable by 11 June 2014  8 712  8 712 

Payable by 11 June 2015  8 712  8 712 

Payable by 17 June 2016  10 411  -   

MJA Golding  27 835  17 424 

Payable by 11 June 2014  8 712  8 712 

Payable by 11 June 2015  8 712  8 712 

Payable by 17 June 2016  10 411  -   

TG Govender  10 649  6 666 

Payable by 11 June 2014  3 333  3 333 

Payable by 11 June 2015  3 333  3 333 

Payable by 17 June 2016  3 983  -   
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 Direct benef ic ia l  Indirect benef ic ia l Associates

 Number Percentage  Number Percentage  Number Percentage 

 holding holding  holding

40. DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDINGS

31 March 2014

Execut ive directors

JA Copelyn  5 584 766  5.2  -    -    -    -   

MJA Golding  7 018 646  6.5  1 371 519  1.3  -    -   

TG Govender   215 024  0.2   17 250  -    1 354 244  1.1 

Non-execut ive directors

VM Engel   2 000  -    -    -    -    -   

 12 820 436  11.9  1 388 769  1.3  1 354 244  1.1 

31 March 2013                                               

Execut ive directors

JA Copelyn  5 426 801  4.3  -    -    -    -   

MJA Golding  7 273 081  5.7  1 371 519  1.1  -    -   

TG Govender   159 329  0.1   17 250  -    1 354 244  1.0 

Non-execut ive directors

VM Engel   2 000  -    -    -    -    -   

VE Mphande   40 230  -    -    -    -    -   

 12 901 441  10.1  1 388 769  1.1  1 354 244  1.0 

There were no changes in 

directors’ shareholdings between 

31 March 2014 and the date of 

issue of this report.
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 Gains

 Other from share

Board fees  Salary  benef its opt ions  Bonus  Total 

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

41. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Year ended 31 March 2014

Execut ive directors

JA Copelyn  -     5 449   1 521   3 579   4 085   14 634 

MJA Golding  -     5 449   1 521   3 579   4 085   14 634 

TG Govender  -     2 503    582   1 167   1 626   5 878 

Y Shaik
#

   512  *    92  -      48  -      652 

Non-execut ive directors

BA Hogan    306  **  -    -    -    -      306 

JG Ngcobo    439  ***  -    -    -    -      439 

LW Maasdorp
##

   11  ****  -    -    -    -      11 

MF Magugu    273  *****  -    -    -    -      273 

ML Molef i    509  ******  -    -    -    -      509 

R Watson
##

   125  *******  -    -    -    -      125 

VE Mphande    531  ********  -    -    -    -      531 

VM Engel    216  -    -    -    -      216 

  2 922   13 493   3 624   8 373   9 796   38 208 

#    	 appointed as execut ive director 19 March 2014
## 	 appointed as non-execut ive director 19 March 2014

*     	 includes R86 400 audit committee fees and R217 000 board fees paid by subsidiary companies

**   	 includes R89 500 audit committee fees

*** 	 includes R47 304 remunerat ion committee fees, R54 988 socia l  and ethics committee fees, 

	 and R120 000 board fees paid by subsidiary companies

**** 	 includes R3 219 audit committee  fees

***** 	 includes R56 666 remunerat ion committee fees

****** 	 includes R39 660 audit committee fees,  R62 633 socia l  and ethics committee fees, and R190 000 

	 board fees paid by subsidiary companies

******* 	 includes R117 000 board fees paid by subsidiary companies

******** 	 includes R315 000 board fees paid by subsidiary companies
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 Gains

 Other from share

Board fees  Salary  benef its opt ions  Bonus  Total 

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2013

Execut ive directors

JA Copelyn  -     5 145   1 091   3 682   3 858   13 776 

MJA Golding  -     5 145   1 084   3 682   3 858   13 769 

TG Govender  -     1 832    417   1 149   1 190   4 588 

Non-execut ive directors

B Hogan
##

   172  *  -    -    -    -      172 

JG Ngcobo    275  **  -    -    -    -      275 

MF Magugu    255  ***  -    -    -    -      255 

ML Molef i    293  ****  -    -    -    -      293 

VE Mphande    210  -    -    -    -      210 

VM Engel    210  -    -    -    -      210 

Y Shaik    289  *****  -    -    -    -      289 

  1 704   12 122   2 592   8 513   8 906   33 837 

#    	 appointed 29 August 2012		

		

*     	 includes R49 333 audit committee fees		

**   	 includes R65 000 remunerat ion committee and socia l  and ethics committee fees		

*** 	 includes R45 000 remunerat ion committee fees		

**** 	 includes R82 500 audit committee and socia l  and ethics committee fees		

***** 	 includes R78 500 audit committee fees		
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2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

42. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The fo l lowing are the summarised results for the 

var ious reportable operat ing segments:

Revenue Net gaming win

Continuing operat ions

Media and broadcasting  2 538 841  2 200 355  -    -   

Non-casino gaming   44 770   27 672   818 421   689 953 

Information technology   294 054   286 527  -    -   

Transport  1 194 948  1 130 774  -    -   

Vehic le component manufacture   300 620   333 722  -    -   

Beverages  1 110 212   233 764  -    -   

Propert ies   80 944   56 521  -    -   

Mining   652 873   556 129  -    -   

Clothing, text i les and toys  2 163 518  1 845 524  -    -   

Other   2 125   6 113  -    -   

 8 382 905  6 677 101   818 421   689 953 

Discont inued operat ions

Natural  gas   336 258   237 298  -    -   

Clothing and text i le   604 457   667 962  -    -   

  940 715   905 260  -    -   

Segment Result (prof it  before tax)

Continuing operat ions

Media and broadcasting   620 998   717 732 

Non-casino gaming   113 747   108 592 

Casino gaming and hotels   779 791   675 324 

Information technology   43 675   59 452 

Transport   126 638   131 731 

Vehicle component manufacture   1 520  (7 397)

Beverages  (448)  (24 601)

Propert ies   70 226   33 146 

Mining   65 008   64 226 

Clothing, text i les and toys   168 448   88 214 

Other  (203 506)   373 333 

 1 786 097  2 219 752 
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2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont inued)

Segment Result (prof it  after tax)

Discont inued operat ions

Natural  gas  (54 209)  (62 727)

Vehic le component manufacture  (31)  (2 078)

Clothing, text i les and toys  (159 901)  (45 173)

 (214 141)  (109 978)

Assets Liabi l i t ies

Media and broadcasting  2 617 896  1 847 232   932 159   652 522 

Non-casino gaming   621 621   470 920   334 085   309 424 

Casino gaming and hotels  9 313 876  8 824 743  -    -   

Information technology   220 687   200 276   82 086   81 125 

Transport  1 205 738  1 123 613   712 656   671 880 

Vehic le component manufacture   149 015   169 723   131 153   150 897 

Mining   702 507   661 398   161 559   121 132 

Natural  gas   944 602   940 091   118 731   342 420 

Propert ies  1 272 401   484 447   683 022   38 449 

Clothing, text i les and toys  2 551 914  2 437 043  1 151 693  1 041 595 

Beverages  2 100 628  2 056 938   460 339   422 113 

Other  1 092 851  1 476 254  3 096 092  1 428 366 

 22 793 736  20 692 678  7 863 575  5 259 923 

Fixed asset addit ions Depreciation and amortisation

Media and broadcasting   255 903   160 398   177 808   97 049 

Non-casino gaming   202 274   129 335   78 677   68 266 

Information technology   25 253   17 073   19 735   15 951 

Transport   104 104   195 270   83 163   66 634 

Vehic le component manufacture   3 856   12 425   9 424   9 936 

Beverages   38 658   9 779   28 911   6 069 

Propert ies    878    131   1 381   1 836 

Mining   124 150   26 209   41 444   23 181 

Natural  gas 33 492     84 009   113 512   85 328 

Clothing, text i les and toys   32 359   107 331   41 773   38 036 

Other   2 103   2 638   1 778    620 

  823 030   744 598   597 307   412 906 
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2014 2014 2013 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont inued)

Amounts applicable to associates and joint ventures 

included above :

Equity 
accounted 

earnings

 Investment 
in associates 

and joint 
ventures 

Equity 

accounted 

earnings

 Investment 

in associates 

and jo int 

ventures 

Media and broadcasting  (17 443)  215 142  (18 636)  168 444 

Casino gaming and hotels  779 791  9 348 960  675 324  8 857 961 

Transport  10 334  21 794  12 243  24 461 

Beverages   331  15 272  (14 722)  15 141 

Propert ies   488  33 925  3 302  21 026 

Other  (25 273)  339 103  34 288  374 675 

 748 228  9 974 196  691 799  9 461 708 

 Impairments  Reversal of  impairments 

2014 2013 2014 2013

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Media and broadcasting   150  3 033  -    -   

Non-casino gaming  6 742  3 964  -    -   

Vehic le component manufacture  -    8 284  -    -   

Information technology  -    -     509  -   

Propert ies  5 925  -    -    -   

Clothing, text i les and toys  4 617  -  -    21 885 

Other  -    43 024  -    -   

 17 434  58 305   509  21 885 
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

The group entered into transact ions in the 

ordinary course of business with var ious owned 

subsidiar ies and associated companies. 

Dividends received by the company are as fol lows:

- Subsidiar ies  1 595 642  512 118 

- Associates  594  -   

Detai ls of loans to these ent it ies are set out in 

note 6 and annexure A.

Key management compensation was paid as follows:

Salar ies and other short-term employees benef its 151 773  100 207 

Detai ls of d irectors '  remunerat ion are disclosed in 

note 40 to the f inancia l  statements.

43.1

43.2

The natural  gas segment operates in the 

United States of America.

Group revenue and net gaming win is attr ibutable 

to the fo l lowing geographical  areas:
2014
R’000

2013

R’000

South Afr ica  8 685 802  7 292 083 

Europe and United Kingdom  430 280  57 590 

Austral ia  67 935  6 443 

Other  17 309  10 938 

 9 201 326  7 367 054 

Non-current assets** of the Group are held in the 

fo l lowing geographical  areas:
2014
R’000

2013

R’000

South Afr ica  15 414 731  14 853 438 

Austral ia  844 664  520 280 

United Kingdom  293 606  242 201 

Other  15 914  10 237 

 16 568 915  15 626 156 

* Restated

** Excludes financial instruments, deferred tax assets 

and post-employment benefit assets.
Group Company

2014 2013 2014 2013

 R'000  R'000  R'000  R'000 

SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont inued)
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44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Group 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group has established bank guarantees in favour 

of the Department of Minerals and Energy against the 

future rehabil itation of its operations in the amount of 

R 56,2 mil l ion (2013: R32 mil l ion).

The Group has issued a guarantee in favour of Investec Bank 

Limited in respect of obligations of three subsidiaries, 

namely, Permasolve Investments Proprietary Limited, 

Kalahari Village Mall Proprietary Limited and Highland 

Night Investments 93 Proprietary Limited. The amount of 

the guarantee is limited to R76,8 million, R46,6 million 

and R11,6 million respectively.

In terms of the 90 year Notarial Deed of Lease entered 

into with the Khara Hais Municipality, a subsidiary, 

Kalahari Village Mall Proprietary Limited, will have an 

obligation to pay rent to the lessor, monthly in arrears, 

from the date of commencement of trade of the Kalahari 

Village Mall shopping centre. The monthly rent payable 

will be calculated as per the following formula:

•	 For the first 15 years after commencement of trade: 

5% of income after deduction of operating expenses

•	 For the remaining 75 years of the lease period: 8% 

of income after deduction of operating expenses

Company

The company has issued a guarantee in favour of The 

Standard Bank of South Africa Limited in respect of the 

obligations of a subsidiary, HCI Coal Proprietary Limited. 

The amount of the guarantee is limited to R 59 million 

(2013: R35 million).

The company has issued guarantees in favour of Sasol 

Oil Proprietary Limited in respect of obligations of 

subsidiaries, Palesa Coal Proprietary Limited and Mbali 

Coal Proprietary Limited. The amounts of the guarantee 

are limited to R12 million (2013: R 10 million) and R10 

million (2013: R nil) respectively.

The company has issued a guarantee in favour of First Rand 

Bank Limited in respect of the obligations of a subsidiary, 
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (cont inued)

HCI Invest 9 Holdco Proprietary Limited. The amount of 

the guarantee is limited to R 69,4 million (2013: R nil).

The company has issued a guarantee in favour of Investec 

Bank Limited in respect of the obligations of a subsidiary, 

Arctozone Investments Proprietary Limited. The amount 

of the guarantee is limited to R 80 million (2013: R nil).

The company has issued a guarantee in favour of Rand 

Merchant Bank Limited in respect of the obligations of 

a subsidiary, Highland Night Investments 93 Proprietary 

Limited. The amount of the guarantee is limited to R 82,1 

million (2013: R nil).

The company has issued a guarantee in favour of Investec 

Bank Limited in respect of the obligations of a subsidiary, 

HCI Invest 8 Holdco Proprietary Limited. The amount of 

the guarantee is limited to R 82,1 million (2013: R nil).

During the year, the company refinanced the preference 

share debt of R240 million granted to Mercanto 

Investments Proprietary Limited and the short term 

loan facility of R360 million granted to HCI Treasury 

Proprietary Limited, subsidiaries. 

The company has issued guarantees and suretyships 

to ABSA  Bank Limited and First Rand Bank Limited 

for the  preference share debt granted to TIH Prefco 

Proprietary Limited. At 31 March 2014 an  amount of 

R 600 mil l ion (2013: R ni l) remained owing to First 

Rand Bank Limited and R 400 mil l ion (2013: R ni l) 

to ABSA Bank Limited in respect of this preference 

share debt. The company has issued guarantees and 

suretyships to Investec Bank Limited  for a term loan 

granted to HCI Treasury Proprietary Limited. At 31 

March 2014 the total amount owing in respect of this 

term loan amounted to R 136 mil l ion (2013: R 136 

mil l ion). In addition, guarantees and suretyships have 

been issued by the company to Investec Bank Limited 

for a term loan granted to Vukani Gaming Corporation 

Proprietary Limited in the amount of R185 mil l ion 

(2013: R185 mil l ion).
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 Pr incipal 

act iv ity 

 Date of 

acquisit ion 

 Proport ion 

of shares 

acquired 

45. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 

SUBSIDIARIES ACQUIRED

Year ended 31 March 2014

Media and broadcasting

Str ika Entertainment Proprietary Limited Animated 

content 

producer 

01/12/2013 70%

The acquisit ion was faci l i tated through the 

purchase of the company's issued share capital . 

The subsidiary was acquired to expand the Group's 

business in the media and broadcasting sector 

within which this ent ity operates.

Afr ikaans Satel l iet Telev is ie Proprietary Limited Telev is ion 

broadcaster 

01/10/2013 80%

The acquisit ion was faci l i tated through the 

purchase of the company's issued share capital . 

The subsidiary was acquired to expand the Group's 

business in the media and broadcasting sector 

within which this ent ity operates.

Clothing, text i les and toys

Custom Extrusion Proprietary Limited Polypropolene 

manufacturer 

04/07/2013 100%

The acquisit ion was faci l i tated through the 

purchase of the company's issued share capital . 

The subsidiary was acquired to expand the Group's 

business in the manufacturing sector within which 

this ent ity operates.

Clever Litt le Monkey Proprietary Limited Onl ine 

furniture 

retai ler 

01/08/2013 100%

The acquisit ion was faci l i tated through the 

purchase of the company's issued share capital . 

The subsidiary was acquired to expand the Group's 

business in the retai l ing sector.

45.1
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 Date of 

acquisit ion 

 Proport ion 

of shares 

acquired 

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (cont inued)

Non-Casino Gaming

Niveus Investments 4 Proprietary Limited  Gaming 16/08/2013 100%

The acquisit ion was faci l i tated through the 

purchase of the company's issued share capital . 

The subsidiary was acquired to expand the Group's 

business in the gaming sector.

Galaxy Bingo North West Proprietary Limited  Gaming 04/11/2013 100%

The acquisit ion was faci l i tated through the 

purchase of the company's issued share capital . 

The subsidiary was acquired to expand the Group's 

business in the gaming sector.

Year ended 31 March 2013

Beverages

KWV Holdings Limited Alcohol ic 

beverage 

producer 

11/12/2012 51,6%

The acquisition was facil itated through the purchase 

of the company's issued share capital. This subsidiary 

was acquired to expand the Group's business in the 

beverage sectors within which this entity operates.

Media and broadcasting

Sunshine Coast Broadcasters Proprietary Limited Radio 

broadcasting 

01/03/2013 100%

The acquisition was facilitated through the purchase of 

the company's issued share capital. This subsidiary was 

acquired to expand the Group's business in the radio 

broadcasting sector within which this entity operates.
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Media and 
broadcasting

 Clothing, 
textiles and 

toys 

 Non-casino 
gaming 

R’000 R’000 R’000

COST OF ACQUISITION, NET CASH OUTFLOW ON 

ACQUISITION AND ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND 

LIABILITIES ACQUIRED

Year ended 31 March 2014

Non-current assets

Property, p lant and equipment  741  11 916  1 263 

Intangible assets  2 167  -    - 

Deferred tax asset  517  -   -

Current assets

Trade and other receivables  9 584  13 050 -

Inventory  17  8 401 -

Cash and cash equivalents  9 718  59 -

Other current assets  445  93  - 

Non-current l iabi l i t ies

Deferred tax l iabi l i ty  -    (1 848) -

Other non-current l iabi l i t ies  (3 009)  (3 707) -

Current l iabi l i t ies

Bank overdraft  -    (4 698) -

Other current l iabi l i t ies  (5 393)  (10 791) -

 14 787  12 475 1 263 

Pre-acquisit ion prof its distr ibuted  (4 600)  -   -

Non-control l ing interests  (3 359)  -   -

Gain on bargain purchase  (252)  -   -

Goodwi l l  on acquisit ion  2 424  14 204  329 

Cost of acquisit ions  9 000  26 679  1 592 

Contingent considerat ion **  -    (12 678) -

Cash balances acquired  (9 718)  4 639 -

Net cash ( inf low) outf low on acquisit ion  (718)  18 640  1 592 

** The cont ingent considerat ion arrangement 

requires the Group to pay the former owners a 

f ixed amount based on future operat ional prof its. 

The potent ia l  undiscounted amount of a l l  future 

payments that the group could be required to 

make under this arrangement is between R Ni l  and 

R14 500 000. 

The fa ir value of the cont ingent considerat ion 

arrangement of R12 677 912 was est imated by 

apply ing a discount rate of 9.05%.

45.2
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (cont inued)

Year ended 31 March 2013

Beverages

The accounting for the acquisition of KWV Holdings 

Limited ("KWV") was made on a provisional basis in 

terms of IFRS 3: Business Combinations for the year 

ended 31 March 2013.    In terms of IAS 8, Accounting 

policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, 

the adjustments to finalise the KWV acquisition have 

been made retrospectively. The comparative figures 

have been restated to present the prior year figures as 

if the acquisition accounting was finalised in the prior 

year. No statement of financial position for the year 

ended 31 March 2012 has been presented as required 

by IAS 1 for any restatements of prior period amounts, 

as the KWV business combination affected only the year 

ended 31 March 2013.   

Other

Al l  of  the shares in the capital  of  Sunshine Coast 

Broadcasters Proprietary Limited was acquired on 

15 March 2013.

As the acquisition took place close to the 31 March 

2013 year end the information required to account for 

the acquisition was incomplete. The initial accounting for 

the acquisition was therefore determined provisionally in 

the 31 March 2013 financial report. In accordance with 

IFRS 3: Business Combinations, adjustments to initial 

provisional accounting for the acquisition disclosed 

in the 31 March 2013 annual financial statements 

have been recognised as if the final accounting for 

the business combination had been completed at the 

acquisition date. Comparative information for 31 March 

2013 has therefore been adjusted.
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BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (cont inued)

45.3 GOODWILL ARISING ON ACQUISITION

The purchase price of the businesses acquired includes amounts in relation to the 

benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth and the assembled workforce of 

these businesses. These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwil l as 

the future economic benefits arising from them cannot be reliably measured.

45.4 IMPACT OF THE ACQUISITIONS ON THE RESULTS OF THE GROUP

The businesses acquired during the year contributed revenues of R 78,8 mil l ion and 

net profits after of R 4 mil l ion to the group for the periods from dates of effective 

control to 31 March 2014. Had the acquisitions been effective on 1 April 2013 the 

contribution to revenue would have been R 117,1 mil l ion and net profit of R 6 mil l ion 

would have been the contribution to profit after tax.

Beverages  Other 

Reported Adjustments Restated Reported Adjustments Restated

2013 2013 2013 2013

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Non-current assets

Property, p lant and equipment  201 222  439 360  640 582  4 478  (1 005)  3 473 

Intangible assets  19 328  49 222  68 550  150 822  (61 198)  89 624 

Investment in jo int venture  15 297  -    15 297  -    -    -   

Other non-current assets  8 356  -    8 356  351  -    351 

Current assets

Trade and other receivables  333 762  -    333 762  7 534  -    7 534 

Inventory  719 628  -    719 628  -    -    -   

Cash and cash equivalents  102 686  -    102 686  -    -    -   

Other current assets  31 561  -    31 561  -    -    -   

Non-current l iabi l i t ies

Deferred tax l iabi l i ty  (37 465)  (77 295)  (114 760)  -    -    -   

Other non-current l iabi l i t ies  -    -    -    (609)  -    (609)

Current l iabi l i t ies

Other current l iabi l i t ies  (164 478)  -    (164 478)  -    -    -   

 1 229 897  411 287  1 641 184  162 576  (62 203)  100 373 

Non-control l ing interests  (595 270)  (198 808)  (794 078)  -    -    -   

Goodwi l l  on acquisit ion  -    -    -    -    62 203  62 203 

Gain on bargain purchase  (264 422)  (212 479)  (476 901)  -    -    -   

Cost of acquisit ions  370 205  -    370 205  162 576  -    162 576 

Shares issued  (71 499)  -    (71 499)  -    -    -   

Interest already owned  (291 361)  -    (291 361)  -    -    -   

Cash balances acquired  (102 686)  -    (102 686)  -    -    -   

Net cash (inflow) outflow on acquisition  (95 341)  -    (95 341)  162 576  -    162 576 
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

FINANCIAL RISK FACTORS

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial 

risks: market risk (including currency risk and interest 

rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s 

overall risk management programme focuses on the 

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 

minimise potential adverse effects on the financial 

performance of the Group. The Group uses derivative 

financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.

Risk management is carried out by the treasury 

departments of the major operating units under policies 

approved by their board's of directors. Their boards 

provide principles for overall risk management, as well 

as written policies covering specific areas, such as 

foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, use of derivative 

financial instruments and non-derivative financial 

instruments, and investing excess liquidity. Credit risk 

is also managed at an entity level for trade receivables.

MARKET RISK

Currency r isk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from 

various currency exposures, primarily with respect to 

the US Dollar and the Euro. Foreign exchange risk arises 

from exposure in the foreign operations due to trading 

transactions in currencies other than the functional 

currency. The Group secures its debt denominated in 

US Dollar in the offshore entities with assets and cash 

flows of those offshore operations (where the functional 

currency of these entities is US Dollars). As a result 

no forward cover contracts is required on this debt. 

Foreign currency import and exports  within the Group 

are managed using forward exchange contracts.

 

The fo l lowing signi f icant exchange rates appl ied 

during the year:

Average rate  Reporting date

2014 2013 2014 2013

Austral ian Dol lar  9.42  8.80  9.78  9.66 

Brit ish Pound  16.11  13.42  17.62  14.01 

Euro  13.57  10.94  14.59  11.81 

United States Dol lar  10.12  8.53  10.60  9.25 

46.1

46.1.1
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A 10% strengthening of the functional currency 

against the fol lowing currencies at 31 March would 

have increased/(decreased) profit and loss by the 

amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that 

al l  other variables, in particular interest rates, 

remain constant. This analysis is performed on the 

same basis for 2013.

   Profit/(loss)

2014 2013

R’000 R’000

Local currency:

Austral ian Dol lar    368  (1 447)

Brit ish Pound    1 125    139 

Euro   30 754  (1 892)

United States Dollar  (17 528)  (19 065)

A 10% weakening of the functional currency against 

the above currencies at 31 March would have had 

the equal but opposite effect on the above currencies 

to the amounts shown above, on the basis that al l 

other variables remain constant.

The following carrying amounts were exposed to 

foreign currency exchange risk:

Non-current receivables

Euro  387  -   

United States Dol lar  -     13 314 

Trade and other receivables

Austral ian dol lar  13 064    858 

Canadian dol lar  6 309  -   

Brit ish Pound  4 141   1 877 

Euro  68 104   7 874 

Japanese Yen  3 764  -   

Nigerian Naira  242    54 

Swiss Franc  56  -   

United States Dol lar  113 161   278 066 

Trade and other payables

Austral ian dol lar  9 385   15 329 

Brit ish Pound  921    489 

Canadian Dol lar  1 795   2 939 

Euro  51 641   26 791 

Japanese Yen  -     1 315 

United States Dol lar  344 478   468 712 

2014 2013

R’000 R’000
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Interest rate r isk

The Group’s primary interest rate risk arises from long-

term borrowings. It is exposed to a lesser extent to 

interest rate changes on loans to non-controlling interest 

of fellow subsidiary companies. Borrowings at variable 

rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. 

Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value 

interest rate risk. Where appropriate the Group manages 

its interest rate risk by using floating-to-fixed interest 

rate swaps. Such interest rate swaps have the economic 

effect of converting floating rate borrowings to fixed 

rates. Under the interest rate swaps, the Group agrees 

with other parties to exchange, at specified intervals 

(mainly quarterly), the difference between fixed contract 

rates and floating rate interest amounts calculated by 

reference to an agreed reference interest rate calculated 

on agreed notional principal amounts.

At 31 March the interest rate prof i le of the Group’s 

interest-bearing f inancia l  instruments was:

Carrying amount

2014 2013

R’000 R’000

Fixed rate instruments

Financia l  assets 38 430   73 580 

Financia l  l iabi l i t ies (134 637)  (281 417)

(66 207)    (207 837)

Variable rate instruments

Financia l  assets 8 475   146 476 

Financia l  l iabi l i t ies (4 502 383)  (2 042 719)

(4 493 808)    (1 896 243)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments:

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates 

would have increased or decreased equity by R0,75 

mi l l ion (2013: R2,01 mi l l ion).

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments:

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates would 

have increased or decreased profit or loss by R32,4 

million (2013: R14,7 million). This analysis assumes 

that all other variables, in particular foreign currency 

rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on 

the same basis for 2013.
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Other price risk

The Group is not exposed to commodity price risk other 

than the market price of natural gas. In order to mitigate 

the risks associated with the fluctuations in natural gas 

prices from time to time the  group enters short term 

future exchange contract to fix gas prices for portions 

of expected production volumes. A change of 1% in the 

gas price would have increased/decreased post tax 

profits by R1 million (2013: R1 million). The analysis 

assumes that all other variables remain constant. 

CREDIT RISK

The group has no signif icant concentrations of credit 

risk. Overal l credit risk is managed at entity level. 

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, 

derivative f inancial instruments and deposits with 

banks and f inancial institutions, as well as credit 

exposure to the Group’s customer base, including 

outstanding receivables and committed transactions. 

For banks and f inancial institutions, only Group Audit 

Committee approved parties are accepted. The group 

has pol icies that l imit the amount of credit exposure 

to any f inancial institution. Trade receivables 

comprise a large, widespread customer base and 

the group performs ongoing credit evaluations of the 

f inancial condition of its customers. The uti l isation 

of credit l imits are regularly monitored. Refer note 

16 for further credit risk analysis in respect of trade 

and other receivables. No credit l imits were exceeded 

during the year under review, and management does 

not expect any losses from non-performance by these 

counterparties.

The table below shows the Group's maximum exposure 

to credit risk by class of asset:

Carrying amount

2014 2013

R'000 R'000

Debt securit ies  -    95 867 

Derivat ives used for hedging  15 723  1 566 

Receivables  1 752 645  1 706 674 

Cash and cash equivalents  1 188 680  986 501 

 2 957 048  2 790 608 

46.1.2
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LIQUIDITY RISK

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining 

sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability 

of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit 

facilities and the ability to close out market positions. 

Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, 

the treasury functions of the major subsidiaries aims to 

maintain flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit 

lines available. Management monitors rolling forecasts of 

the Group’s liquidity headroom on the basis of expected 

cash flow and the resultant borrowing position compared 

to available credit facilities. This process is performed 

during each financial year end for five years into the future 

in terms of the Group’s long term planning process.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial l iabil ities 

that will be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity 

groupings based on the remaining period at the 

statement of financial position date to the contractual 

maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are 

the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due 

within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as the 

impact of discounting is not significant.

Less than 1 

year

Between 2 

and 5 years

Over 5 years

R’000 R’000 R’000

At 31 March 2014

Bank and other borrowings  2 983 074 1 968 227 787 666

Financia l  guarantees   580 446  -    -   

Derivat ive f inancia l  instruments   27 494  -    -   

Trade and other payables  1 764 002  -    -   

 5 355 016 1 968 227   787 666   

Less than 1 

year

Between 2 

and 5 years

Over 5 years

R’000 R’000 R’000

At 31 March 2013

Bank and other borrowings  1 888 634  1 075 561   406 293 

Financial guarantees   155 400  -    -   

Derivat ive f inancia l  instruments   15 164  -    -   

Trade and other payables  1 605 628  -    -   

 3 664 826  1 075 561   406 293 

Defaults and breaches on loans

There were no breaches or defaults on the repayment 

of any loans payable during the current or pr ior year.

46.1.3
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46.2 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to 

safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going 

concern and provide optimal returns for shareholders 

through maintaining an optimal capital structure. The 

Group defines capital as equity funding provided by 

shareholders and debt funding from external parties. 

Shareholder funding comprises permanent paid up 

capital, share premium, revenue reserves and other 

reserves being revaluation reserves (if any) and foreign 

currency translation reserves together with loans from 

shareholders. The board’s policy is to maintain a strong 

capital base so as to maintain investor and creditor 

confidence and to sustain future development of the 

business. The board of directors monitors the cost of 

capital, which the Group defines as the weighted average 

cost of capital, taking into account the Group’s internally 

calculated cost of equity (shareholder funding) and 

long term cost of debt assumptions. The board seeks 

to maintain a balance between the higher returns that 

might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and 

the advantages and security afforded by a sound equity 

position. The Group’s debt capacity and optimal gearing 

levels are determined by the cash flow profile of the 

Group and are measured through applicable ratios such 

as net debt to EBITDA and interest cover. In order to 

maintain or adjust the capital structure, in the absence 

of significant investment opportunities, the Group may 

adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, 

return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. 

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital 

management during the year. Neither the Company nor 

any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed 

capital requirements.

46.3 FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

IFRS 7 requires disclosure of fair value measurements by 

level of the following fair  value measurement hierarchy:

Level  1 - Quoted prices avai lable in act ive markets 

for ident ical  assets or l iabi l i t ies

Level 2 - Inputs used, other than quoted prices included 

within level 1, that are observable for the asset or 

liabil ity, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - Fair value determined by valuation that uses 

inputs that are not based on observable market data
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Group 2014

Assets

Financia l  assets at fa ir value through prof it  or loss

  Foreign exchange contract  -    15 723  -    15 723 

  Equity securit ies  22 294  -    -    22 294 

Avai lable-for-sale f inancia l  assets

  Equity securit ies  3 644  -    -    3 644 

  Other  -    -    5 244  5 244 

Non-financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

  Investment property  -    -    1 695 532  1 695 532 

Total  assets  25 938  15 723  1 700 776  1 742 437 

Liabi l i t ies

Financial l iabil ities at fair value through profit or loss

Foreign exchange contracts  -    27 494  -    27 494 

  Cont ingent considerat ion  -    -    12 678  12 678 

Total  l iabi l i t ies  -    27 494  12 678  40 172 

Group 2013

Assets

Financia l  assets at fa ir value through prof it  or loss

  Foreign exchange contract  -    1 566  -    1 566 

  Equity securit ies  64 679  -    -    64 679 

Avai lable-for-sale f inancia l  assets

  Equity securit ies  3 580  -    -    3 580 

  Debt securit ies  -    95 867  -    95 867 

  Other  -    -    5 282  5 282 

Non-financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

  Investment property  -    -    907 503  907 503 

Total  assets  68 259  97 433  912 785  1 078 477 

Liabi l i t ies

Financial l iabi l it ies at fair value through profit or loss

Foreign exchange contracts  -    15 164  -    15 164 

Total  l iabi l i t ies  -    15 164  -    15 164 
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The fo l lowing table presents the changes in level  3 

f inancia l  instruments for the year:

Investment 

propertyOther Total

R'000 R'000 R'000

Group 2014

Assets

Carry ing value at beginning of year  5 282  907 503  912 785 

Additions  2 839  260 783  263 622 

Improvements  -    457 511  457 511 

Disposals  -    (1 000)  (1 000)

Transfer from property, p lant and equipment  -    49 301  49 301 

Transfer out of level  3 to disposal group assets held for sale  (2 877)  (1 850)  (4 727)

Profits recognised in profit and loss  -    23 284  23 284 

Carrying value at end of year  5 244  1 695 532  1 700 776 

Contingent 

considerat ion

R'000

Liabi l i t ies

Carry ing value at beginning of year  -   

Assumed in a business combinat ion  12 678 

Carrying value at end of year  12 678 

Other
Investment 

property Total

R'000 R'000 R'000

Group 2013

Assets

Carrying value at beginning of year  8 585  557 886  566 471 

Addit ions  2 078  205 401  207 479 

Improvements  -    38 586  38 586 

Sett lements  (3 756)  -    (3 756)

Transfer out of level  3  (2 235)  -    (2 235)

Profits recognised in profit and loss  610  427  1 037 

Transfer from property, p lant and equipment  -    104 496  104 496 

Acquired in a business combinat ion  -    707  707 

Carry ing value at end of year  5 282  907 503  912 785 
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47. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Subsequent to the reporting date the following significant 

events have occurred:

- Seardel Investment Corporation Limited ("SIC"), a 

subsidiary of the group, concluded a rights issue 

in April 2014 in terms of which 3 125 000 000 

N-Ordinary no par value shares were issued for a 

cash consideration of R1.60 per share. The proceeds 

were partly used by a subsidiary of SIC to redeem 

preference shares issued to Hosken Consolidated 

Investments Limited which, together with dividends 

accrued thereon, totalled R3 144 million. An interest 

bearing loan owing to the Southern African Clothing 

and Textile Workers Union in the amount of R1 347 

million was also settled using these proceeds. 

- During August 2014 Sabido Investments Proprietary 

Limited ("Sabido"), a subsidiary of the group, concluded 

an agreement with Deepkloof Limited ("Deepkloof"), 

a fellow subsidiary of the group, to purchase 80% 

of the ordinary share capital of Longkloof Limited 

("Longkloof") for a nominal amount and have Longkloof 

repay its loans owing to Deepkloof in the amount of 

US$37 million. At the same time Sabido purchased 

20% of the ordinary share capital of Longkloof from a 

third party for a nominal amount and caused Longkloof 

to repay its loans owing to this party in the amount of 

US$9 million. Subsequent to the transactions, Sabido 

owned 100% of the ordinary share capital of Longkloof.

- Deepkloof Limited ("Deepkloof"), a subsidiary of the 

group, concluded an agreement during July 2014 to 

subscribe for 13% of the ordinary share capital of 

Impact Oil and Gas Limited ("IOG"), an oil and gas 

exploration company based in the United Kingdom, 

for a total of US$25 million. An agreement was also 

concluded with a third party during September 2014 

whereby Deepkloof purchased a further 7% of the 

ordinary share capital of IOG for US$8 million. 

Other than as previously detailed in this report, the 

directors are not aware of any event or circumstance 

occurring between the reporting date and the date of 

this report that materially affects the results of the 

group or company for the year ended 31 March 2014 or 

the financial position at that date.
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48. PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT

The were various circumstances in the group requiring 

a restatement of prior year results. The restatements 

relate to the beverages; clothing, textiles and toys; 

media and broadcasting; and natural gas segments. 

Beverages

The accounting for the acquisition of KWV Holdings 

Limited ("KWV") was made on a provisional basis in 

terms of IFRS 3: Business Combinations, for the year 

ended 31 March 2013.    In terms of IAS 8,  Accounting 

policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, 

the adjustments to finalise the KWV acquisition have 

been made retrospectively. The comparative figures have 

been restated to present the prior year figures as if the 

acquisition accounting was finalised in the prior year. 

The revised fair values of the assets and liabilities resulted 

in additional depreciation, amortisation and defered tax 

charge for the year end 31 March 2013.

Clothing, textiles and toys

Seardel Investments Corporation Limited have disclosed 

the results of discontinued operations seperately in the 

income statement, and where practical, the prior year 

results have been restated.

Media and broadcasting

As the acquisition of Sunshine Coast Broadcasters 

Proprietary Limited took place close to the 31 March 

2013 year end, the information required to account for 

the acquisition was incomplete. The initial accounting for 

the acquisition was therefore determined provisionally in 

the 31 March 2013 financial report. In accordance with 

IRFS 3: Business Combinations adjustments to initial 

provisional accounting for the acquisition disclosed in the 

31 March 2013 annual financial statements have been 

recognised as if the final accounting for the business 

combination had been completed at the acquisition 

date. Comparative information for 31 March 2013 has 

therefore been adjusted.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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PRIOR PERIOD RESTATEMENT (cont inued)

Natural  gas

During the year ended 31 March 2014 a decis ion 

was made by the company's board of d irectors to 

distr ibute the group's interest in Johnnic Holdings 

USA LLC to its shareholders, subject to the receipt of 

the necessary regulatory approvals. The comparat ive 

results of these operat ions have been restated to 

disclose results as discont inued operat ions.

The effect of the restatements on the annual financial 

statements for the years ended 31 March 2013 is as 

follows:

Media and

Previously broadcasting Beverages Restated

reported restatement restatement

2013 2013

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Statement of f inancia l  posit ion

Non-current assets

Property, p lant and equipment  3 521 054  (1 005)  439 360  3 959 409 

Goodwi l l  194 267  62 203  -    256 470 

Intangible assets  893 885  (61 198)  49 222  881 909 

Equity

Equity attr ibutable to equity holders of the parent 12 788 446  -    112 237  12 900 683 

Non-control l ing interest  2 233 022  -    299 050  2 532 072 

Non current l iabi l i t ies   

Deferred taxat ion  163 313  -    77 295  240 608 

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share  1 095.13 

As previously stated  1 006.16 

Increase on gain on bargain purchase  88.97 

Di luted earnings per share  1 072.16 

As previously stated  985.05 

Increase on gain on bargain purchase  87.11 
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49. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Beverages

Excise duty became more and more relevant to KWV 

in recent years as KWV's business shifted away from 

packed wine exports and bulk spirit sales in the local 

market; towards packed product sales (spirits in 

particular) in the SA market. In addition, the above-

inflation increases in SA excise duties over the past 

few years increased its impact on the business and the 

relevance of how it is accounted for and managed. 

As a result the policy regarding the accounting for 

excise duties was reviewed during the year and changed 

to include excise duties in the valuation of inventory; 

and in Revenue and Cost of sales.  The change will result 

in better visibility on the total investment in inventory 

and on the impact of inventory losses; and improved 

management of selling expenses (i.e. discounts and 

commissions) that are based on gross turnover.

The change in the accounting policy had the following 

effect on the financial statements: 

Previously 

reported

Change in 
policy Restated

R'000 R'000 R'000

Impact of changes in accounting policy on consolidated 

statement of financial position on 31 March 2013:

Current assets

Inventory  1 558 495  162 966  1 721 461 

Trade and other receivables  1 891 983  (162 966)  1 729 017 

Impact of changes in accounting policy on consolidated 

statement of profit and loss:

Increase in revenue 58 199

Decrease in other operating expenses (58 199)

The change in accounting policy had no impact on the 

statements of other comprehensive income, changes in 

equity and of cash flows.
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50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

An analysis of the Group's assets 

and liabilities, classified by financial 

instrument, are set out below:

Loans and 

receivables

Financia l  l iabi l i t ies 

at amort ised cost

Non f inancia l 

instruments

Avai lable 

for sale

Fair value through 

prof it  or loss

Held to maturity 

investments

Total

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Group

Assets

Non-current assets  196 365  91 925  -    -    16 646 330  15 662 680  3 684  3 620  5 479  53 169  -    -    16 851 858  15 811 394 

Property, plant and equipment  -    -    -    -    3 735 578  3 959 409  -    -    -    -    -    -    3 735 578  3 959 409 

Investment properties  -    -    -    -    1 695 532  907 503  -    -    -    -    -    -    1 695 532  907 503 

Goodwill  -    -    -    -    279 011  256 470  -    -    -    -    -    -    279 011  256 470 

Intangible assets  -    -    -    -    695 276  881 909  -    -    -    -    -    -    695 276  881 909 

Intangible assets mining  -    -    -    -    111 611  102 207  -    -    -    -    -    -    111 611  102 207 

Investments in associates  -    -    -    -    9 620 840  9 083 194  -    -    -    -    -    -    9 620 840  9 083 194 

Investments in joint ventures  -    -    -    -    353 356  378 514  -    -    -    -    -    -    353 356  378 514 

Other financial assets  -    -    -    -    -    -    3 684  3 620  5 479  53 169  -    -    9 163  56 789 

Deferred taxation  -    -    -    -    127 941  84 189  -    -    -    -    -    -    127 941  84 189 

Operating lease equalisation asset  -    -    -    -    27 185  8 276  -    -    -    -    -    -    27 185  8 276 

Finance lease receivables  50 526  48 674  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    50 526  48 674 

Non-current receivables  145 839  43 251  -    -    -    1 009  -    -    -    -    -    -    145 839  44 260 

Current assets  2 832 713  2 680 782  -    -    2 064 977  2 083 774  5 204  101 109  32 538  13 076  -    -    4 935 432  4 878 741 

Inventories  -    -    -    -    1 644 269  1 721 461  -    -    -    -    -    -    1 644 269  1 721 461 

Programme rights  -    -    -    -    292 726  255 975  -    -    -    -    -    -    292 726  255 975 

Other financial assets  -    49 082  -    -    -    -    5 204  101 109  32 538  13 076  -    -    37 742  163 267 

Trade and other receivables  1 644 033  1 645 199  -    -    117 407  83 818  -    -    -    -    -    -    1 761 440  1 729 017 

Taxation  -    -    -    -    10 575  22 520  -    -    -    -    -    -    10 575  22 520 

Cash and cash equivalents  1 188 680  986 501  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    1 188 680  986 501 

Disposal group assets held for sale  134 718  -    -    -    868 475  2 543  -    -    3 253  -    -    -    1 006 446  2 543 

Total assets  3 163 796  2 772 707  -    -    19 579 782  17 748 997  8 888  104 729  41 270  66 245  -    -    22 793 736  20 692 678 
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50. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

An analysis of the Group's assets 

and liabilities, classified by financial 

instrument, are set out below:

Loans and 

receivables

Financia l  l iabi l i t ies 

at amort ised cost

Non f inancia l 

instruments

Avai lable 

for sale

Fair value through 

prof it  or loss

Held to maturity 

investments

Total

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Group

Assets

Non-current assets  196 365  91 925  -    -    16 646 330  15 662 680  3 684  3 620  5 479  53 169  -    -    16 851 858  15 811 394 

Property, plant and equipment  -    -    -    -    3 735 578  3 959 409  -    -    -    -    -    -    3 735 578  3 959 409 

Investment properties  -    -    -    -    1 695 532  907 503  -    -    -    -    -    -    1 695 532  907 503 

Goodwill  -    -    -    -    279 011  256 470  -    -    -    -    -    -    279 011  256 470 

Intangible assets  -    -    -    -    695 276  881 909  -    -    -    -    -    -    695 276  881 909 

Intangible assets mining  -    -    -    -    111 611  102 207  -    -    -    -    -    -    111 611  102 207 

Investments in associates  -    -    -    -    9 620 840  9 083 194  -    -    -    -    -    -    9 620 840  9 083 194 

Investments in joint ventures  -    -    -    -    353 356  378 514  -    -    -    -    -    -    353 356  378 514 

Other financial assets  -    -    -    -    -    -    3 684  3 620  5 479  53 169  -    -    9 163  56 789 

Deferred taxation  -    -    -    -    127 941  84 189  -    -    -    -    -    -    127 941  84 189 

Operating lease equalisation asset  -    -    -    -    27 185  8 276  -    -    -    -    -    -    27 185  8 276 

Finance lease receivables  50 526  48 674  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    50 526  48 674 

Non-current receivables  145 839  43 251  -    -    -    1 009  -    -    -    -    -    -    145 839  44 260 

Current assets  2 832 713  2 680 782  -    -    2 064 977  2 083 774  5 204  101 109  32 538  13 076  -    -    4 935 432  4 878 741 

Inventories  -    -    -    -    1 644 269  1 721 461  -    -    -    -    -    -    1 644 269  1 721 461 

Programme rights  -    -    -    -    292 726  255 975  -    -    -    -    -    -    292 726  255 975 

Other financial assets  -    49 082  -    -    -    -    5 204  101 109  32 538  13 076  -    -    37 742  163 267 

Trade and other receivables  1 644 033  1 645 199  -    -    117 407  83 818  -    -    -    -    -    -    1 761 440  1 729 017 

Taxation  -    -    -    -    10 575  22 520  -    -    -    -    -    -    10 575  22 520 

Cash and cash equivalents  1 188 680  986 501  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    1 188 680  986 501 

Disposal group assets held for sale  134 718  -    -    -    868 475  2 543  -    -    3 253  -    -    -    1 006 446  2 543 

Total assets  3 163 796  2 772 707  -    -    19 579 782  17 748 997  8 888  104 729  41 270  66 245  -    -    22 793 736  20 692 678 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont inued)

Loans and 

receivables

Financia l  l iabi l i t ies 

at amort ised cost

Non f inancia l 

instruments

Avai lable 

for sale

Fair value through 

prof it  or loss

Held to maturity 

investments

Total

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities  -    -    2 917 689  1 304 221  490 296  491 692  -    -    -    -    -    -    3 407 985  1 795 913 

Operating lease equalisation liability  -    -    -    -    3 596  118  -    -    -    -    -    -    3 596  118 

Borrowings  -    -    2 917 689  1 304 221  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    2 917 689  1 304 221 

Post retirement medical benefit liabilities  -    -    -    -    154 942  150 282  -    -    -    -    -    -    154 942  150 282 

Long term provisions  -    -    -    -    54 319  100 684  -    -    -    -    -    -    54 319  100 684 

Deferred taxation  -    -    -    -    277 439  240 608  -    -    -    -    -    -    277 439  240 608 

Current liabilities  -    -    4 156 542  3 298 244  152 756  148 912  -    -    27 494  15 164  -    -    4 336 792  3 462 320 

Trade and other payables  -    -    1 762 403  1 603 590  1 599  2 038  -    -    -    -    -    1 764 002  1 605 628 

Financial liabilities  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    27 494  15 164  -    -    27 494  15 164 

Current portion of borrowings  -    -    1 687 231  1 019 915  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    1 687 231  1 019 915 

Taxation  -    -    -    -    9 993  6 508  -    -    -    -    -    9 993  6 508 

Provisions  -    -    -    -    141 164  140 366  -    -    -    -    -    141 164  140 366 

Bank overdrafts  -    -    706 908  674 739  -    -    -    -    -    -    706 908  674 739 

Disposal group liabilities held for sale  -    -    47 573  -    71 225  1 690  -    -    -    -    -    -    118 798  1 690 

Total liabilities  -    -    7 121 804  4 602 465  714 277  642 294  -    -    27 494  15 164  -    -    7 863 575  5 259 923 
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont inued)

Loans and 

receivables

Financia l  l iabi l i t ies 

at amort ised cost

Non f inancia l 

instruments

Avai lable 

for sale

Fair value through 

prof it  or loss

Held to maturity 

investments

Total

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities  -    -    2 917 689  1 304 221  490 296  491 692  -    -    -    -    -    -    3 407 985  1 795 913 

Operating lease equalisation liability  -    -    -    -    3 596  118  -    -    -    -    -    -    3 596  118 

Borrowings  -    -    2 917 689  1 304 221  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    2 917 689  1 304 221 

Post retirement medical benefit liabilities  -    -    -    -    154 942  150 282  -    -    -    -    -    -    154 942  150 282 

Long term provisions  -    -    -    -    54 319  100 684  -    -    -    -    -    -    54 319  100 684 

Deferred taxation  -    -    -    -    277 439  240 608  -    -    -    -    -    -    277 439  240 608 

Current liabilities  -    -    4 156 542  3 298 244  152 756  148 912  -    -    27 494  15 164  -    -    4 336 792  3 462 320 

Trade and other payables  -    -    1 762 403  1 603 590  1 599  2 038  -    -    -    -    -    1 764 002  1 605 628 

Financial liabilities  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    27 494  15 164  -    -    27 494  15 164 

Current portion of borrowings  -    -    1 687 231  1 019 915  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    1 687 231  1 019 915 

Taxation  -    -    -    -    9 993  6 508  -    -    -    -    -    9 993  6 508 

Provisions  -    -    -    -    141 164  140 366  -    -    -    -    -    141 164  140 366 

Bank overdrafts  -    -    706 908  674 739  -    -    -    -    -    -    706 908  674 739 

Disposal group liabilities held for sale  -    -    47 573  -    71 225  1 690  -    -    -    -    -    -    118 798  1 690 

Total liabilities  -    -    7 121 804  4 602 465  714 277  642 294  -    -    27 494  15 164  -    -    7 863 575  5 259 923 
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont inued)

Loans and 

receivables

Financia l  l iabi l i t ies 

at amort ised cost

Non f inancia l 

instruments

Avai lable 

for sale

Fair value through 

prof it  or loss

Held to maturity 

investments

Total

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Company

Assets

Non-current assets 4 695 848  2 360 324  -    -    14 453 955  1 511 511  -    -    -    -    -    -    19 149 803  3 871 835 

Investments in associates  -    -    -    -    3 000  3 000  -    -    -    -    -    -    3 000  3 000 

Subsidiary companies  4 617 580    2 236 277   -    -    14 450 955  1 508 511  -    -    -    -    -    -    19 068 535  3 744 788 

Non-current receivables  78 268  124 047  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    78 268  124 047 

Current assets  2 689  5 747  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    2 689  5 747 

Trade and other receivables  352  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    352  -   

Bank balances and deposits  2 337  5 747  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    2 337  5 747 

Total  assets  80 957  129 794  -    -    19 071 535  3 747 788  -    -    -    -    -    -    19 152 492  3 877 582 

Liabilities

Current l iabi l i t ies  -    -    506 755  225 694  20  8  -    -    -    -    -    -    506 775  225 702 

Trade and other payables  -    -    1 969  2 005  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    1 969  2 005 

Amounts owing to subsidiar ies  -    -    369 581  74 961  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    369 581  74 961 

Taxat ion  -    -    -    -    20  8  -    -    -    -    -    -    20  8 

Bank overdrafts  -    -    135 205  148 728  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    135 205  148 728 

Total  l iabi l i t ies  -    -    506 755  225 694  20  8  -    -    -    -    -    -    506 775  225 702 
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont inued)

Loans and 

receivables

Financia l  l iabi l i t ies 

at amort ised cost

Non f inancia l 

instruments

Avai lable 

for sale

Fair value through 

prof it  or loss

Held to maturity 

investments

Total

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Company

Assets

Non-current assets 4 695 848  2 360 324  -    -    14 453 955  1 511 511  -    -    -    -    -    -    19 149 803  3 871 835 

Investments in associates  -    -    -    -    3 000  3 000  -    -    -    -    -    -    3 000  3 000 

Subsidiary companies  4 617 580    2 236 277   -    -    14 450 955  1 508 511  -    -    -    -    -    -    19 068 535  3 744 788 

Non-current receivables  78 268  124 047  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    78 268  124 047 

Current assets  2 689  5 747  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    2 689  5 747 

Trade and other receivables  352  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    352  -   

Bank balances and deposits  2 337  5 747  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    2 337  5 747 

Total  assets  80 957  129 794  -    -    19 071 535  3 747 788  -    -    -    -    -    -    19 152 492  3 877 582 

Liabilities

Current l iabi l i t ies  -    -    506 755  225 694  20  8  -    -    -    -    -    -    506 775  225 702 

Trade and other payables  -    -    1 969  2 005  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    1 969  2 005 

Amounts owing to subsidiar ies  -    -    369 581  74 961  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    369 581  74 961 

Taxat ion  -    -    -    -    20  8  -    -    -    -    -    -    20  8 

Bank overdrafts  -    -    135 205  148 728  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    135 205  148 728 

Total  l iabi l i t ies  -    -    506 755  225 694  20  8  -    -    -    -    -    -    506 775  225 702 
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2014 2013

Issued share 

capital

Effective 

interest Shares Loans Shares Loans

R'000 % R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Annexure A

Shares and loans stated at cost less impairment

Investment holding companies

Catwalk Investments 167 Proprietary Limited  *   100  **   213  **   213 

Deepkloof Limited (3)  *   100  **  -    **  -   

Fabcos Investment Holding Company Proprietary Limited  *   100  **  -    **  -   

Flaghigh Investments Proprietary Limited  *   100  **  -    35 000  111 500 

Foothills Trading and Investment 8 Proprietary Limited  *   100  *  -    *  (3 857)

Fulela Trade and Invest 81 Proprietary Limited  *   100  **  -    **  -   

HCI Central Investments Proprietary Limited  *   100  **  (53)  **  (53)

HCI Food & Beverages Proprietary Limited  *   100  *   5  *   5 

HCI International Holdings Limited  1 221 900   100  1 162 675  251 259  ***  -   

HCI Invest 6 Holdco Proprietary Limited  800 000   100  560 000  -    -    -   

HCI Investments Australia Proprietary Limited (2)  *   100   1  -     1  -   

Johnnic Holdings Limited  *   100  **  -    **  -   

Mercanto Investments Proprietary Limited  *   100  **  -    *  1 052 899 

Merilyn Investments Proprietary Limited  25 002   100  25 065  13 660  25 065  13 660 

Move On Up 104 Proprietary Limited  *   100  *   5  *   5 

Niveus Investments Limited  790 345   52  81 775  -    71 170  -   

Squirewood Investments 64 Proprietary Limited  *   100  *  1 069 218  *  59 486 

Tangney Investments Proprietary Limited   1   100  **  -    32 500  45 035 

TIH Prefco Proprietary Limited  11 779 570   100  11 779 570  -    -    -   

TIHC Investments Proprietary Limited 12 039 448   100  **  -    -    -   

Casino gaming and hotels

Tsogo Investment Holding Company Proprietary Limited  1   100  **  -    **  -   

Non-casino gaming

Niveus Gaming and Entertainment Proprietary Limited  *   52  **  -    **  -   

Vukani Gaming Corporation Proprietary Limited  5 107   52  **  -    **  -   

Financial and management services

HCI Managerial Services Proprietary Limited  *   100  *  55 465  *  68 608 

HCI Treasury Proprietary Limited   500 000   100  500 000  (338 382)  500 000  873 866 

Vehicle component manufacture

Formex Industries Proprietary Limited   100   100  *  286 028  *  286 028 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
INTEREST IN PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
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2014 2013

Issued share 

capital

Effective 

interest Shares Loans Shares Loans

R'000 % R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Transport

Golden Arrow Bus Services Proprietary Limited  *   100  265 014  -    265 014  -   

Hol lyberry Props 12 Proprietary Limited  *   100  **  -    **  -   

Media and broadcasting 

Crystal Brook Distribution Proprietary Limited  *   80  **  -    **  -   

e.sat tv Proprietary Limited  *   47  **  -    **  -   

e.tv Proprietary Limited  860 488   47  **  -    **  -   

Longkloof L imited (3)  *   80  **  -    **  -   

Sabido Investments Proprietary Limited  743 044   47  **  -    23 496  -   

Sabido Propert ies Proprietary Limited  *   47  **  -    **  -   

Yired Proprietary Limited  *   47  **  -    **  -   

HCI Invest 3 Holdco Proprietary Limited 800 000 74  ** 3 183 105 - -

Mining

HCI Coal Proprietary Limited  *   80  6 794  -    6 794  -   

Natural gas

Johnnic Holdings USA LLC (1)  1 108  000   100  **  -    **  -   

Clothing, textiles and toys

Seardel Group Trading Proprietary Limited  2 500   74  **  -    **  -   

Seardel Investment Corporat ion Limited  163 036   74  **  -    **  -   

Seartec Trading Proprietary Limited   1   74  **  -    **  -   

Information technology

Mars Holdings Proprietary Limited  *   55  19 801  -    19 801  -   

Properties

Gal lagher Estate Holdings Limited  19 300   100  **  -    **  -   

Kalahari  Vi l lage Mal l  Proprietary Limited   80 087   41  **  -    **  -   

Permasolve Investments Proprietary Limited  *   60  *  -    * 

Mironet ix Proprietary Limited  41 467   80  33 173  -    *  -   

HCI Invest 5 Holdco Proprietary Limited  *   100  **  -    -    -   

HCI Invest 8 Holdco Proprietary Limited  *   100  *  -    -    -   

HCI Invest 9 Holdco Proprietary Limited  *   100  *  -    -    -   

HCI-Propco 2 Proprietary Limited  *   100  *  -    -    -   

Beverages

KWV Holdings Limited   1   52  **  -    **  -   
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
INTEREST IN PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

2014 2013

Issued share 

capital

Effective 

interest Shares Loans Shares Loans

R'000 % R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Other 

Almania Investments Proprietary Limited  *   100   1  -     1  -   

Ancestral Investments Proprietary Limited  *   100  *  -    *  -   

Blue Beacon Investments 240 Proprietary Limited  *   85  *  -    *  -   

C&A Associated Consultants Proprietary Limited  *   100  *  -    *  -   

Descarte Investments No. 8 Proprietary Limited   2   100  *  -    *  -   

HCI Lifting Services Proprietary Limited  *   100  *  -    *  -   

HJS Advisory Services Proprietary Limited  *   100  *  -    *  -   

IGI Investment Company Limited  37 546   55  *  (1 026)  *  (1 026)

Limtech Biometric Solutions Proprietary Limited  *   51  **  -    **  -   

Rowan Tree 4 Proprietary Limited  *   100  *  -    *  -   

Sam Sisonke Proprietary Limited  *   100  *  -    *  -   

Tylon Holdings Proprietary Limited  *   100  16 429  -    16 429  (64 165)

 14 450 298  4 519 497  995 271  2 442 204 

*     under R1 000

**   indirect ly held

***  direct ly and indirect ly held

Subsidiaries whose f inancial posit ion or results 

are not material are excluded.

Detai ls of excluded subsidiar ies are avai lable 

from the company secretary.

2014 2013

R'000 R'000

Prof its and losses of consol idated subsidiary 

companies attr ibutable to the company

Aggregate prof its after tax  23 195 370  2 471 863 

Aggregate losses after tax  (311 886)  (154 236)

Subsidiar ies are incorporated in South Afr ica 

unless otherwise shown.

(1) USA

(2) Austral ia

(3) Channel.  Is lands

Encumbrances

Shares and claims having a total carrying value 

of R15 797 million (2013: R 3 167 million) have 

been pledged a security for certain loans owing 

to loan funders of the Group. Refer note 22.
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